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Man AHL

Diversified Principal Protected (ZC) Limited

Diversified Programme

Man AHL Diversified Principal Protected Trading Limited

2020
2008 12 29
50,000 50,000
1,000
Codan Trust Company Limited 2005 12 14

Master Multi-Product Purpose Trust
Codan Trust Company Limited

Master Multi-Product Holdings Ltd.
100

AHL
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2020
13,430,610 97.20
388,660 2.81
1,346 0.01
13,817,925
( 1,456 ) 100.00
2020

0.000

2023/ /31

13,476,629 8,150,665 | 13,430,610 | 97.20

0.000

2023/ /31

4,224,781 1,669,633 388,660 2.81
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39/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2020
s011 224,104 23,612 1.0406 110
2012 166,217 17,513 0.9884 104
2013 144,733 15,249 1.1119 117
2014 73,942 7,791 0.8783 93
2015 71,526 7.536 1.2051 127
2016 26,956 2,840 1.1190 118
2017 21,669 2,283 0.9827 104
2018 18,286 1,927 0.9334 98
10 14,405 1,518 0.9571 101
2019 ’ ’ :
11 14,225 1,499 1.0233 108
2020 ’ ; '
2019 14,393 1,516 0.9831 104
10 14,313 1,508 0.9836 104
11 14,118 1,487 0.9811 103
12 13,972 1,472 0.9818 103
2020 14,081 1,484 0.9950 105
14,096 1,485 1.0061 106
14,229 1,499 1.0214 108
14,225 1,499 1.0233 108
13,993 1,474 1.0251 108
13,921 1,467 1.0243 108
13,904 1,465 1.0253 108
13,818 1,456 1.0235 108
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0 67,740,000 215,350,000
©) (67,740,000) (215,350,000)
0 47,190,000 168,160,000
©) (47,190,000) (168,160,000)
0 38,000,000 130,160,000
©) (38,000,000) (130,160,000)
0 45,980,000 84,180,000
©) (45,980,000) (84,180,000)
0 24,830,000 59,350,000
©) (24,830,000) (59,350,000)
0 35,260,000 24,090,000
©) (35,260,000) (24,090,000)
0 2,040,000 22,050,000
©) (2,040,000) (22,050,000)
0 2,460,000 19,590,000
©) (2.460,000) (19,590, 000)

10 0 4,540,000 15,050,000
©) (4,540,000) (15,050,000)

" 0 1,150,000 13,900,000
©) (1,150,000) (13,900,000)
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2020 31
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2020 30

2020 2019
74 8 59,821 6,303
14,290,589 1,505,656 14,463,384 1,523,862
3,269 344 3,269 344
14,293,932 1,506,009 14,526,474 1,530,509
(37,425) (3,943) (21,813) (2,298)
(37,425) (3,943) (21,813) (2,298)
14,256,507 1,502,066 14,504,661 1,528,211
14,256,507 1,502,066 14,504,661 1,528,211
14,256,507 1,502,066 14,504,661 1,528,211
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2020 30
2020 2019

1,009,634 106,375 593,611 62,543
1,009,634 106,375 593,611 62,543
(71,493) (7,533) (75.,718) (7,978)
(23,406) (2,466) (26,440) (2,786)
(20,391) (2,148) (19,641) (2,069)
(6,395) (674) (4,979) (525)
(4,903) (517) (4,903) (517)
(126,588) (13,337) (131,681) (13,874)
883,046 93,038 461,930 48,669
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30
2020 2019
14,504,661 1,528,211 18,285,858 1,926,598
(1,131,200) (119,183) (4,243,127) (447,056)
13,373,461 1,409,028 14,042,731 1,479,542
883,046 93,038 461,930 48,669
14,256,507 1,502,066 14,504,661 1,528,211
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2020 30

2020 2019
883,046 93,038 461,930 48,669
172,795 18,206 3,783,419 398,621
15,612 1,645 (4,454) (469)
1,071,453 112,888 4,240,895 446,821
(1,131,200) (119,183) (4,243,127) (447,056)
(1,131,200) (119,183) (4,243,127) (447,056)
(59,747) (6,295) (2,232) (235)
59,821 6,303 62,053 6,538
74 8 59,821 6,303
74 8 59,821 6,303
74 8 59,821 6,303
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2023
2020 30
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15

2019
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2020 30 2019
2020 2019
399,597 679,239
13,890,992 13,784,145
14,290,589 14,463,384
13,533,566
11,267,666 2019 12,423,324
2019 15,050,000
357,426 2019
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399,597 399,597
13,890,992 13,890,992
14,290,589 14,290,589

679,239 679,239
13,784,145 13,784,145
14,463,384 14,463,384

30
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2020 30 2019 30
2020 2019
679,239 1,149,616
(199,003) (370, 238)
(80, 639) (100, 139)
399,597 679,239
2020 2019
13,784,145 17,097,187
(983, 426) (4,006,792)
1,090,273 693,750
13,890,992 13,784,145
2020 30
399,597
13,890,992
2019 30
679,239

13,784,145

66/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

67/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

300

24

2020 30 2020
30 2019 30

68/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30
74 74
14,290,589 14,290,589
3,269 3,269
74 14,293,858 14,293,932
(37,425) (37,425)
(37,425) (37,425)
74 14,256,433 14,256,507
2019 30
59,821 59,821
14,463,384 14,463,384
3,269 3,269
59,821 14,466,653 14,526,474
(21,813) (21,813)
(21,813) (21,813)

59,821 14,444,840 14,504,661
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50 bp
50bp
50bp
50bp

2020 30
50bp 74 14,256,433 14,256,507
50bp 74 14,256,433 14,256,507

2019 30
50bp 60,120 14,444,840 14,504,960
50bp 59,522 14,444,840 14,504,362

2020 30 2019 30
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30
2020 2019

1,090,273 693,750

9,375

702

1,242

(34,275) (22,658)

(13,391) (16,000)

(12,500) (13,729)

(53) (508)

(20, 420) (49,799)

(5,258)

(1,753)

(1,753)

1,009,634 593,611
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2018

2019 30

5,258 5,258

5,258 5,258

12

2018
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0.11 12 0.11
UFJ S.A.
2019 1,753
2019
12
2018
0.5
0.15 12 0.15
25,000
2018 12,500

0.06
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0.01
17,000
100

2020 30

20,391 5,667

13,391 2,667

12,500 2,083
2019 30

19,641 5,667
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1,753

1,753

13,729 2,083
2019
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100 5,000
2009 30
2009 27 30,000
2023 31

15

2015
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30
2020 2019
1.0256 2019 0.9637
13,900,000 2019 15,050,000 14,256,507 14,504,661
(32,000) (100,000)
1.0233 2019 0.9571
13,900,000 2019 15,050,000 14,224,507 14,404,661
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2020
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Man AHL Diversified Principal
Protected Fund FRM

Man

Statement of financial position
As at 30 April 2020

2020 2018
Netes us§ uss
Current assats:
Cash &l bank 3 T4 |
Fanancel as3e15 ot Tair vakes through proft of loss 4 14,280,589 14 463 384
Prepayments and other assets 3280 3,060
Total cument assets 14,203,952 14 526,474
Current llabites:
Accounts paysble and acomied axperses T8 {37 825} =3 - k]
Totel cumant Inbiftses (axciuding net assets atinbutabls to Unithoiders] (37 445) [21.813)
Net assels atindutable to Unthokders 14256507 14,504 867
Which arg reprisanted by
LinbdRy to Untholders
13,900,000 [2079: 15,050,000 Lnis walth a Nel Asset Walus per o of
USS 102568 (2019 USS 0.9837) ] 14,256,507 14,504 561
14,256 507 14,504 BE1
Approved and suthonsed for s on Behal of the Trusles on 1 Octotsr 2020
Htn T /"‘“}m—-“‘“
it b Pt
i gt Tty :'::'_:m_'
Fior and Benal of CIBC Bank and Trust Comparry [Cayman) Limited,
Solely in its capacity as Trustes of Man AHL Deversfied Principal Protected Fund,
The sccomparnang notes fom an integral pan of these fnancal statements,
]
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2020 20€18
Notes us$ Usg
Income
Med gain on fnanci] asseqs 8l for wakes through peolt o loss & 1,006,634 AN
Total income 1,000 634 593 611
ExpEnsas
Agent, senary foes 7 {71,460} 75,718}
Admiristration fes 7 123 405 (26,4400
Trussies fees T8 (20,3501} {18,641}
Ragetrar lees 7 5,395} (4,973}
Profossional faes and genirs ppense (4,903 {4,50z)
(126588 131,681}
Met incoma for the year aiributabée Lo Urktholdars BE3.048 481,930

The gccomparmng notes fam an inbegral part of these fnancal statements,

81/214



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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Statement of Lh.:'l'lgn;" in net gssa

For the year ended 30 Apnl ?I....f.'J
2020 2019
Hote us$ Usg
Nt aasets attrioutabie to Unithalders at the beginning of the year 14,504 61 18,285 858
Rademption of 1,150,000 {2019: 4,540,000) Unas 0 [1,131,200) {4,243,127)
13,373,461 14,042,731

MNet incorme for the year atinbutaba to Linkholdars BEZ 045 461,530
Nt nssets strinutoble to Unitholders ot the end of yeer 14,256,607 14,504 B8

Tha accomparmying notes fom an nbegiel par of these fnancml statements,
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Protected Fund FRM

Man

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

2020 20€18
us$ Usg
Casn flows from operating ectiviies:
Med inc:ornae for the yoar stintutabie 1o Unatholdars BRT04E AG1 9030
AUStmEntS 10 PECONGCES NEL Neom e for Me yaar anrtutatls 1o
Upithlders 10 rol cadh provadid By Operalng dethilees:
Net changs in operating assets and kabfties:
Francisl gssets ot for valsa through profit o kes 172,785 I T3 410
Accounts payabie and accnied expenses 15,612 (4,454}
Nat cash provided by oparating eciivities 1,071,453 4 240,595
Cash Nows from financing activities:
Faymants on radempions of Uints 1,031,200 (4,243,127}
Nat cash used in financing acthvities (1,137 200 14,243 127}
Net change in cash ard cash equualents {89,747} (2252}
Cash ard cash equivalents af the begrning of the year 50 521 62053
Cash and cash equivelents a tne end of the year 74 58,821
Cash and cash aguivelents consist of:
Cash at bank T4 59,521
T4 59 5241
The gccomparmng notes fam an inbegral part of thess fnancal statements,
8
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Man AHL Diversified Principal "
Protected Fund FRM
Man

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

1. General

hasn AHL Dresrsfied Principel Protected Fund e =Trus"] iS & und thust eatablished under the laws of the Cayman lslands on
23 Jenwary 2004 and regetened undes the Cayman Flands Mutual Funds Law (os smended) on 30 Jaruary 2009 and the Rets Motual
Funds (Japari] Reguistions {as amendad), with the obgectne of 1ngebng atiraste msdim-tem capial gains vis rvestment thicugh the
AHL Programme. The Trust is regestered wath Japan Financial Senvces Agency, The Trust comemanced trading on 14 Apeil 2008,

The Trust holds ewvestments o Man AHL Dwersfled Poncpal Frotected (EC) Lmed and han AHL Dreersfied Princpal Frotected
Trading Limied.

Man AHL Deearsified Prnopasl Protected (2C) Lmnited (e =Non-Trading Compamy®™) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Istands on 29 Decamber 2008 to hold LFS Treasury Staps. The Trust imests in Zero Coupon Nobes issued by he Non-Trading Company
which capiure U prformance of e LES Treesury Sips.

Man AHL Dreersffiéd Prinopal Protected Tradng Limted fihe =Tradng Compaermy”™) was mocrporated under the loews of the Cayman
Islards on 29 December 2008 norder to segregate the trading adities and related assets, Babltees, revenues and expansas from
those of the Non-Trading Company. The Trading Company previously mreited mo mandded funds, equies and defwatyes. On
T Jaruary 2015, & has becoma & Teeded fund which now vess e AHL Programme through other funds,

In an effot to enhance the consistency of approach 1o senvice peowrsion, the Tradng Comparry proposed that the Trust go theough a
change in 4% mansgement structure Rhe ~Restructunng™], The Restructunng, effective on 1 November 2018, ntroduced han Asset
Managemant [Cayman) Limited CAMCT) [the =Maragert], an indinect, wholy oanad subsidiary and a management comparty under tha
Man Group, as the new manager of the Trading Company - opersting n accordance with the Man Group’s cument. business. plan,
westment sirateqy, and complance monborng progFamme, IMeesiment managoment sersces cumertly performed by FRM [the
=Ewmstng Irvestment Manager 1o the Tradng Compamy™] will Do transfermed by o way of delegetion by CME 1o Man Soliions Limibed
[MSL™) (the “New Insestment Manager 1o the Tradng Compamy™], a0 an ndirect, wholly owned subsidiary of the Man Group, The
Restructunng was based on the expectatson that thes will have no adwerse operational impact on tha Trusgt,

Investmant exposure

In order to guaranies that the investors poncipal can be repaid upon the scheculed matunty of the Trust on 31 March 2023 fihe
“haturty Cwter], from 7 Juna 2018, the Trodng and Mon-Trading Companies and tharefore the Trusl, eiminsted ther rmesiment
arposune to the undertying hedge fund portfoso by disposing of the immstments in managed funds. As of that date, al remaining capital
of thee Trust via s investments in the Tradng amd Mon-Trading Companies was held in US Treasury Srps and cash

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation
The fnancial statements hawe Deen prepared n aocordance wih Intemabonal Financial Reporting Standands (MIFRST) isswed by the

Irtematonal Accountng Swndards Board FLASET). The financal ststements continus b0 Do prepared usin the hestonca cost
cOMEntion excepd for findncial assets and kabdtes At faer vahus throogh profit of kess which have been measured at far vakus.

T Trirst classdias 15 mterest in the Tradng Comparny and Non-Tradng Campany as financal assels ot fae valss theough proft o hoss,
] M suned at fasr value,

b  Changesinaccountng policies and disdosures
N standands. famalapons and amenoranrs asaetad by the Truse

The accounting poboes adopted n the preparation of the fnanceal statements are consistent with those followed n the preparation of
el Trust's fnandcisl statements for the yeer ended 30 Apnl 20719, Thads anh (o new sandands, intarprdations of amendments in the
fmting standards thet are effectve for the frst tme for the fnancial year begering 1 May 2019 that have o material mpad on the
fingrcial statemants of the Trust.

Imtermational Financial Reportng interpretations Commdtee (71F RICT) Interpretaton 23 Uncertanty over income Tax Treatment

Th wkarprataon addresses the adcourting for income tnxes when Tax Bestmarts svoles uncedanty that affects the on of
Ingematonal Accountng Standands FIAST) 12 ncome Taxes and o8 not apply 10 1a%s of knes outsade the scops of 1AS 12, nor
does it spechically nched requrements reamng 1o nterest and penalies 85500160 WiN LNCEILAIN LAX Ueatments. The mierprelation

speciicaly addridses the folowng:
= WWathor an enfity Conidens LRCran L reatments sparately,
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 April 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b} Changes in accountng policies and disclosures {continued)

Intamatonal Franctal Reportng Interpratations Commites (SIFRICT | Interpretation 23 Uncertanty over Income Tan Traatment
[ontinuedy

*  The assumpbons an entity makes about the examination of ta reatments by axation authonties,
= How anentity determines taxabis proft ftax loss), tax bases, unused tax bosses, unused tax credts and tax rates,
= How #nertly confders changes n facts and Criumstances,

A entity Fst delmnine wWhsther 1o Consie aach uncertan By reatment Separabily of Logemmes with o oF MOre oUher UNCErtn Tax
treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be folowed. The Trust has adopted the
inarpretation on T ay 2019, The adopton of the inberpretation has had no mpact on the financial statemeants of the Trust.

At the date of authorsabon of the fnancial statements, thara were 4 numbser of othed standasds and FEeEetations which wede m issus
bt nat ye effecive. Managemsnt anticipates that the adoption of these standards and niepretations n fuure pencds wall have Mo
maEteril EnEmct On th inancasl statements of the Trusl

ch Use of accounting judgements and estimates

Thee praparateon of financed statements o accordancs with [FRS requnes mans gemant (o makds el gentents, esimales and assiAmplons
that affect the AMOUts repatsd and Gsclsune made in ege Inancial SAEMENs and SCCOMPAnyIng roles, NCiudng ceram
vElaton asumplons. Unoananty about thdd assumpbiond and @sme b couid rédul in GULcomes (et reguird & matial gustman
Lo the camying amount of assets of lablites n the future. In the process of applying the Trhust's accounting poicies, the Trust has made
the jusdgement to classify Unis as financial babliy as dscussad in Note 2im), The Trust alzo used estmabes and assumptions in the far
vale reasurement of fnancial rsruments as dicusted in Nobe £,

dl  Going concesn

Thea Trust has recefved assurancs from hMan Group plc, an alfikate of the Exsting Imestment Manager to the Trading Company, that
should it have insufficient cash o pay ts operabng costs it would subsidss thess costs with sufficeent cash rpsctions O pay for the
ongoing operating Costs of the Trust, As & result of thes assurance, maragement has made an assessmaent of the Trust's ablty to
continue a5 & gong concem and is satisfied thet the Trust has resowces Lo continue in business for the foresesabie future, Furthermione,
managemant 15 not aware of amy matensd uncertainties that may cast signdficant doubt upon the Trust's sty to coninue a5 & Qo
concern, therefions, the financial stabements continue to be prepared Ona going concern basts,

g Assessment a5 an investment antity
Ertties that mael the defintion of an maiment, snlily withan IFRS 10 Consobdated Financisl Statéments ahé reqursd 1o mbasurs his
subsidanes at far value thwough profit or koss rather than consoldate them. The crbena wiich define an investment entity are, a3 follows:

) Fumenbky that codsns funds from ons of Mone meestons for the puepose of provding Thase investors with investment senvices,

i} Ay @rity that commits 1o 13 FWes1crs thal 15 DUSingss pUrpose i o iwest funds solety for eetuems rom capRal appracston,
ST NGO of bath; and

(m] Ay pniy that mbeiurid and evaluates tw perfcrmmances of substarndy ol of &5 rndlAments ona faer valse Dasis.

The Trust's offenng documents detals ds obyactive of providing investment management sénacas Lo imestors which includes mustng
i a vaniety of imvéstments for the purpase of targeting attirdctive medaum-temn capdal gains, a5 moe fully eoplaned in Nobe 1

The Trust reports 10 ds irvestors via monthly imvestor nformation, and Lo ks management via inbernal management repors, on a far
vale basis, ANl rvestments ane reported at Far value 10 the exdant alowed by IFRCS in the Trust's annual reports.

A5 @ resull, the Trusl meeds the defintion of an mestment entity since the Trust provdes investment senaces, Thase conclumons wil be
Py SEEtidl ON &N Arnus Casa, ey of e chtin of CRaraCTEnes change.

i Imvesstment ransactions

Ireastment ransactions ane recognised and derscogrsed on a trade dabe Dasis and sccourted fior at Tar vaiue, Gairs and ioeses which
aise from redamption of financial retruments and refiect movements bebwesn the nbial cost and fair valus are ncluded n the statement

of compeehenshie Ncome,

10
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 April 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f Investment ransactons {continued)

Tra for value of francial metruments treded 0 adtive markets his Bodn Based on quobed market picés ot yeor end, For all cther
fireanctal MStuMents nok raded in an actve markel, the far value has Desn delemingd by WS valisbon techniques desmed 10 e
SPErOPAALS I e CrCUMETances.

al Valuation of finandal assets and abfibes

For NAYV purposas, the waluanon of inancial assets and kabliies is calculated in accaordance with the pancipal documents. For financal
SLALEMENLS furpOSes, IMesments have Deen valued in accordancs with IFRS ureng the pobcss outhned Delow, As et 20 Apdl 2020 and
30 Aprd 2019, there are no matenal dfarences Dolween Mhese vaLARN MEfooogs.

In decordanci with IFRS &, the Trust cdassfios g3 finencasl asses and Babies o ria] recognition mto th citbgones of Enandisl a5ets
and Babiles a5 dfcussed Delow, Fnancel aisals o Rabites hald for tding are scquered o incuried prncipally for the purpose of
sedng or repurchiasng in e short Lem.

Financial assets or babiktes designated by management at far value Shrowgh profit or koss upon nitial recogreson nciude finanoal assets
of habdties that are mot fedd for tradng. These fnancial assets and kabdbes (Ffinancidl instruments®) ane designated upon indial

on the basis that they ans pat of 4 group of financial nstnements whech are managed and have ther pefomance avalusted
on & far value basis, N accordance with nsk managemant and investiment stratecpas of the Trust. The financial infomaton sbout thess
fincyrecial instruments is provided intemally on that basis Lo the Existing Imeestment Manager to e Trading Comparry.

The Trust recogrises a financasd asset or 8 financal Babity when, and only when, & becomes 8 pamy tothe contractual prowsions of fe
instrument. Pegudar-way purchases and sakes of mvestments &fe recognised on the trade dete, which i the dats on which the Trust
commits to punchase of &0 the asset. Fmancial asses and habties at fair valus through peofit of 1053 are mitsally ra cogrised at far valle,
Al ransaction costs fof such NStumens are recogrised drectly in e staternent of comprenenshe Income.

T ke & Rheh Ziets Coupon Motk michades th valud of thi colietical okt fram G Lo b By th Bank o custodian fthe * Sty
Fund®) [Wots 4)

The value of Performance Loan Notes nchedes the valwtion of al trading and isvestments assets and babiltpes of the Trading Comparry,
a5 determined by the Data Complation Agent [Note 4], The calcutabons are based on the value of investments quoted, ksted, traded or
dealt in, or on, amy futures exchangs shal be made by rderence bo the settiement pice. Imestments quobed, sted, traded of deal, in or
an, arry Gtfwr exchange shal b made by references Lo e L5l quated price on Lhi prncpal exchange for such iestments.

Irreestmants ane derecognesad when the nghls 10 redene cash fows from the mvestments heve evpred of the Tust has tansfemed
substantally 8l NEks and rewards of cwnershap,

] Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents m the statement of fnancel posbon may const of cash ot bank, demand deposis, shol Lem deposts m
firsametal mvstmutons snd Shor e Meghly Bqud mvestments that ane readly convertible 1o known amourts of cash and which are
subject toan nmgndicant sk of changes in value, wath orignal matunbies of three months of less, net of culstanding Dank overdrafts
whén apphicable. Shor tem rvestments that ane nol held Tor the purpese of meetng Shom Wem cash commitmaents and restncled
Mangin accounts and nod conssdered cash and cash equsalents,

i Realised and unrealised gains and fosses

Al reaksed and ureaied gard nd Kases ON SeCunles and reoogried a5 nit gain'fioss) on Bnancial assets o1 far vale percfit
o 55 in the statement of comprahenswe ncome, Unreaksed gans and kosses comprse changes o the far value of fnancial
nstuments for the year and from reversal of poor year's undeaksed gans and losses for finances] instruments which wers resksed in the
fneancial year. AL the Tredng ond Non-Tradng Companies kevel, resised gams end forses represert the difference betwesn an
mstument”s indial carmying amount and disposal amourt. The cost of securties 5ol 5 accounted for on g first in-first out basis,

il Functional and presentatonal currency

T Trust seeks Lo generate relurns n Unted States dollars (*USS), is captalvasing cumency. The bquiddy of ths Trust is managed on
8 day-to-day basis in USH m order 1o hendle the Bsue end redemption of the Trust's Units, The Trust's pedomance i also evaluated n
USS. Therefore, as the USS is consdered a5 the cumency tat most fathfuly represents the economa: effacts of the underipng
ransactons, events and condtions, the Trust' s functional and presentational cumency i the LSS

1
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting palicies (continued)

kb Foredgn currency

Trandactons dunng the yesr déendminaled m forssgn cumendies bave been transisted sl the rabes of eirchange riing ol the dates o
Wansachons. Assels and kabities dendminated n foregn CLETENCSS afe transiated af the rates of exchangs in effect at the date of the
statament of finanaal postion, For mvesment ansachons and mvestments ekl a1 the yes end denaminated in fomign curency, the
FFUlng Qaind of lostes ane included in wmgﬂhﬂm financal assels ol far value through profit oF WSS n e Sialement of
comprehensie ncome AR other foreign cumency gains and losses are ncuded in the net gandloss) on fnancial assets af far value
thecisgh profit o loss in the statement of comprehensie mooma.

I Expenses
AN GAPRNSES A MCogISad in th SLAlHMent of com Presrrineg INGoms on an docnss! b,

m) Units
Uris are classiod as fnancial labity of squly INStrumenis depending upon whether:

Thea Units enititle the holder to @ prorata share of the Trst's net assets in the event of the Trust"s kquedation,

The Linsts are n the cass of Fstruments that s suboednate bo ail other classes of nstuments.

Al Linits in the class of nstrumaents thet i subordinate to o ather classes of instruments have identical fealures,

Thea Units donat inchude amy contractual obbgation 1o defiver cash or snother financial azset cther than the holders nghts to a
pro rata shane of the TIUSES et 855605,

= The total expected cash flows atirbutable W the Unds ower the e of the nstrument are based substanialty on the proft or
b5, 1 changs in thi recogrised Nt assels o the changs n th far vilese of the Mooognised and uriecognised g asses of
the Trust ower the e of the nstrument.

I additica 1o the Unis having ail of the above featunes, the Trust must R no offuer fnancal Bstument of contract that has:;

= Total cash fows based substanbaly on the prof or loss, the changs i the recognised net assets or the changs i the far

value of the recognised and unfecogresed nel assets of the Trust

»  The effect of subsiantiaky restnctng or faxng the ressdual neturn 1o the Unitholders
T Trusd conbruacurily assasses the classhicanon of th Units, If the Unis coase 1o hawe ol e features, o meel all thi condibons sl
o, b0 be cheRsified o equiy, the Trust will reclassly them at francial Mbities and measund them at fer vwaked ot the dete of
reciassiication, with ary difeences from the prevcus Camyng amound fecognised in equity. If the Urds subsequaertly have all the
features and mest the condiions 1o be clossfisd a5 equity, the Trust will reclassey them as equity instruments and measurs them at the
canmying amount of the kabéties at the date of the reclassfication.

As eaplaned in Niote 9, the Uinits of the Trust have been dassfied as financal katdty,

3. Cash at bank

AL the year end, amounts disclosed 85 cash at bank were hald at Royal Bark of Scotland intemational Umited {the =Bank™). As at
30 Aprd 2000 and 30 Aprl 2019, thers were no collaberal balances Medd with beokers.

4, Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss

Trear foliowang tabie summanses finenciad assets at fair valie theough prof or loss as at 30 Apei:

200 2018
Fair valua Faif valua
us3 uss

Financis mssets et fair value through profit or loss
Performance Loan Notes, ssued by the Trading Company 399 597 679,239
T Coupon Mo, it by th Non-Trading Company 12,890,992 12,784,145

Total financial essets at fair valus throug? profit of loss 14 260,584 14,453 384

12
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 April 2020

4. Financial aszets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

US3 13,533,566 [2019: USE 13,784,145) of the fnancial sty af far value thiough profit of loas held within the Non-Trading Company
have batn phidged a3 collaterel for Tore Coupen Motes, issued by the Non-Tradng Company.

Irvestments at the Trust leval

The Trust secks to provide mwesions with asswance of the retum of the ikl subscribed capaal and amounts guarantsad under Tu
ol beckiin Featurs. To achid thit cbpbctvi, Thi Trust purchased Tane Coupen Notes from tha Non- Trading Compart, thi undeiying
of which are US Tressury Sinps (he =Instnenent™), Thir remaring procesds from the ssue of Units sfter purchasse of Tens Colpon
Hotes wers used Lo subscribe for the Pesformance Loan hotes issusd by the Tradng Company.

Irvestments at the Trading and Non-Trading Com paniss

Lero Coupon Mobes

A ok 30 Agell H020, the cost of the Instrument held was USE 11,267 666 (@015 USE 12423, 324) and & maturas on 15 Febory 2023,
at 5 principad amount of USS 13.650,000 (2009: USS 15,050,000, As st 20 Apdl 2020, the far value of the Tera Coupon Notes, issuad
by the Non-Tradng Comparry amourks to USS 13800892 [@009: USS 13,784,145) whch reflects the cument ratng of the ssuer and
e CAFTORE IFRorenl rstes. The smound of far value of the Zend Coupon Nobes, issued By the Non-Tradng Company o inchaive of
amounts reconabi on sale of investmaénts at the undaring non-trading comparny kvl ameuntng 1o USE 357 426 [20719; USS N,
which is not collateraised,

Parformance Loan Nowas

Thel e EroCamd s Bom th s of Unds afted purchase of Zero Coupon Nolis wene used b2 subscnbae fof the Pedfanménce Loan
Notes. Each Performance Loan Mote carmss an enbthement to a pro rata share in the Performance Loan Mote Account {as defined in the
offenng documents), the far vaise of whech i3 the NAYV of the Trading Company. The Parformance Loan Nobes are redesmabile on any
first business day of each calendar marth or such other busingss days as the drectors shal from tme Lo tme determing (the = Dealing
Dy ) wtach enabies the Trust 1o be able o mest the Trustes’s cblgatsan o repurchase Uints,

Fair value of firancial assets

l'haTr:mthss.MsTumhamaameu«:mngalsmmrﬂudr;w”enmmsgmuuﬂmﬁusad i el e
el M BASLESM LS 1N e with IFRS 13 Fair Value Medsurement,

The Truet has an Ftabirshed raméwsork with rodpect 10 the messuremant of far valuds, This inchsdis @ ponadic i of all sgrificant
far walue measurements, inchadng Lavel 3 far valuss.

The Existing bwestment Manager 1o the Tradng Compeny regulafy ranews sigrificant uncbeenabie inputs and valuation adyrstments [f
any). If thrd party informabion &5 used bo measune far valuss, they assess the andence obiained from the thind parties to support the
concluon such that vakstions meot the requirements of IFRS, ncluding the kel n the far value hisrrchy in which such valbations
should be classdfiled.

T i wiliie Mot are vy Feacs U followand bowis:

*  Lewvel 1 - Cuobed markest pace i an sctive market for an idenbcal rstrument.

®  Level ¥ - Valustion techreques based on cbservabie npuls, This calegory moludes mstruments valled wsing: quoted market
preces i acive markets for smar nstruments, quotsd pnces fof semdar mstnents i markets that ane conssdened kess than
mctive o offuer wallation technigues whers # signdficant nputs are drectly o indirectly observable from market data,

= Level 3 = Valuslon DRChniques sng Sonicent Wnobasnveble nputs, This category nciudes o mstruments wivine the
valusuoh techmuge includes iNpUts Rt Based on chsdrvabis data and the uncBsenably inpuls coud have a Sgnificant
mpact on the mstrumsnt’s waluabon, This category mcludes nstruments that are valued based on quoled prces fof smiar
nstruments whene signiflcant unobeenabis adustments of assUmMpUons are requned to reflect diferences Debwesn me
mshments,

Whaen faer vakees Hiﬂodwpﬂd:uadﬁmymmmmﬁd funds and dervaines s Based on QUOLEd mamel pregs of
dialed prace quotations, i an aclive markel for senticsl assels without, oy adustments, the rtruments &e nciuded withm
Lavel 1 & ther besranchy,
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 Apnil 2020

4. Financial aszets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Fair value of financial assets (continued)

Thea Trust's mvestments in Peformance Loan Notes and Zero Coupon Notes afe dassited as Level 3 as the undertyng of these are
based on the NAY of the Tradng end Non-Trading Companses, which are unchsenvable inputs

T followeng i 8 surnmsary of The classication withen this fae valus esrarchy for this Trust's Tnancal nstruments camed af far value &
at 30 Apel 2020:

Total
Level 3 Fair walue
Uss LSS
Firancial assets t fair value through profit or loss
Performancs Loan Notes, isued by e Trading Company 309,597 09,597
Lero Coupon Notes, issusd by the Non-Tradng Company 13,500,952 13,800,552
Total financial assets at fair value through profit of loss 14200 14200580

The follownng = 8 summary of the classication within the far value Feergrchy for the Trust"s financial instruments carned ot far value as
a1 30 Apel 200%:

Tetal
Lesred 3 Fak value
us3
Firancial assets 2t fair value through profit or loss
Parformands Losn Notes, Baued by the Tradng Company 619279 19239
Lero Coupon Notes, issued by the Non-Tradng Company 13,784,145 13,784,145
Total financial assets at fair value through profit o loss 1 14 34

Trea Trust has no Leved T and Level 2 financial instruments a5 at 30 Apnl 2020 and 30 Apal 2019,

Shiort kerm balances are exchaded from the tables above a5 ther camyng valus ot the reporting date approamates ko ther fair value,
Irwestments ane reviewed at sach fnanced year end to ensure that they are comectly clrssified Detween Levels 1, 2.and 3 in sccondance
with the Tair value hierarchy outkned above. Where an rvestment’s charactensic change dunng the year and imestments no ooger
mig thes crteng of 8 gven leesd, thiy ane transfermed into @ mone spperopinate kv ol the end of the relevant financis) repoding year

For the years ended Z0Apnl 2020 and 30 Aprd 2018, Seend wene no lranslers Detandsn kvals.

A reconciiation of movements n Leval 3 assets for the years ended 30 Apnl 2020 and 30 Apnl 2019 are st oul below:

0 20§19
Barformance Losn Notes uss
Balance at begnining of year 61921 1,149 616
Mavamént in nit assets of the Trading Comparry [195,003) {370,238}
Total koss i stalement of Compraheian e mcame (BO6T9) (100,139}
Salance at end of year 399.597 579339
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

4. Financial aszets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Fair value of financial assets (continued)

2080 209
Z8re Coupon Hoes yss uss,
Balance st begnning of year 13,784,145 17,087,187
Weowement in net assets of the Trading Compary (83, 406) 14,006, 792}
Total income in Salement of compraheniig nooma 1,080,273 693,750
Balance st end of year 1 1 145

T folicwng tables kst unobsanatis NpULs Used m the valusbon of meestments wihich are classifed as Level 3. The Performance Loan
Motes and Zedo Coupon Motes issued by the Tradig and Non-Tradng Companies, respseciively, ane valusd based on the NAV of the
Trading ed Non-Tradng Comparses, whech cen inchede: imvastments held by the Tradng and Non-Trading Companies a5 well a5
accruals for axpanses incumed by the Tradng Company, which ara rot obsanvalbls in the market

Fail va'us &l
30 Aprl
2020
Aisse description US$  Veusiontechrigue  Unchservable nout
NAY o the Trading MAN of the Trading
Pacformance Loan Notes 339,597 Comparry Comparny
RAY of the Non-Tradeng AV of the Mon- Trading
Tero Coupon Meoles 13,830,992 Company Company
Fair va'ue at
30 Aprl
208
Assa dascrption uss Valusiion technigus Uncbsenvabie nout
NAY of the Trading BAN of the Trading
Performance Loan Notes 679,239 Coamparry Compary
NAY of the Non-Trading NAV of the Mon-Trading
e Cowugan Nobes 13,784,145 Compary Compadmy

Theta b5 & singie unobeenyebia NP to Lhe far vaiuaton of the Tredmg and Non-Trading Comparsss hance mo rangs disdosed .

5. Financial risk managerment

T Trust's mdatiment SCtnties 0poee £ 10 the vanous Wypdds of fsk which ang associated wih the fmancisl msruments and markes n
which i st The mosd important types of financad msks o whech 1he Trust 5 exposed ane marl sk, credil nsk and byuidity sk,
Market rek ncludes pnce msk, inkerest mate sk and cumency rsk. The Trust monages these rsks on an aggregate basis abong with the
ks assonated wih &5 nvesting actsbes &5 part of &5 owerall nsk managament poiicies,

The nature and extent of the fimancal instruments oustandng at e date of the statement of financisl posiion and the sk maragement
poilcies empioyed by the Trost are discussad below,

Overall sk management

Trea Trust sought to generate risk adjusted capital gains through imvesting in the Trading and Mon-Trading Comparsss, which then
vested i the AHL Programime and the FRM Portfobo. From 1 June 20708, the Trading and Non-Trading Companses and Shedefore the
Trust, removad Bs fvestment eXposUre (o &5 undedying hadge fund pomfiolo. ANl remaineng capial from thet dabe was held i US
Treasury Sirips and cash, with the am of protecting mvestons” capdal,

11
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 April 2020

5. Financial nsk management (continued)

Civerall risk management (contnued)
The Dwectors of the Tradng and Non-Tradng Companies dstnguitsh between two primany isk kvels, which are nsks at the Tradng and

Non-Tradeng Compsery level, and rigks 8t the undenying mvesmment level. Accordngly, the Exsting Investment Manager to the Tradsmg
Comparry has implemented procedunes [0 Mandge fsks S350ciaed wih Doth the Trading Company kel and its undertyng rvestrents,

At the Trading and Non-Trading Company level

Rek management ot the Tradng Company levd can be segregsted im0 preamestment sk and ongong nsk marsgement
Pra-mvestmant NSk management irvoheas delermirng asset alocation and portioio constructon. Thersafter, fsk management invohes
GONALCLING N5k s PELET Bnalysis, montotng the relevant Trading Company specific porfolo restnelions and mesiment oueines
and managng curmency, interast rate, credit and bguedity risks at the Tradng Company level and making relevant adjusiments to a5sat
alocation and portfolo constructon,

Rk considerations or (he need 10 bring the portfiolo back in ne with the mvestment srategy and approach may ngger a rebalancng
of th portfohs, which is typically revewsd oh 8 reguisr basis by the Exrstng investment Manager (0 the Tradng Comparny's portfoid
MSMACETHHNE Laam

At the leved of underlying nvestmanis
AHL Programme

In e s of the AHL Programime, U tading actiily is managed Dy AHL. AHL ientlies opponuniie 10 poolit fiom Precd movermnents
in mong than 300 dverbe rtemstional markets through speciakied immstmant techniquies, sdvancoed tichnology and day sk contial,

The AHL Programme seoks 1o dantéy and take advantegs of upward and dowreward phos trends. Teading takes place around-the-
chock and reakime pRice NEoMaton S used 10 respond 10 Prce MOvEMEnts across & diverse range of global mankets, Imvesiment rulss
B0 ELRE walln B Syt Framiwon.

AHL employs @ rumbs of mk mesiures NChuding propoptany mesuremant methods simdar to the mduslry Sandard Viahae-at-Fisk
(FwafR") and conducts dally siress testing based on hestoncal data, Depending upon the rsks denbfied, AHL may alber the exposune W
diffsrant markets it brades in,

Submantily, all dirvathg CONActs re Dansscled on & mangin basis. The Existing Imarstment Marages to th Trading Compeny
manages the nek assooated with thess ansactons by Marntaning mangn deposis in compiances with indridusl enchangs reguatons
and intermal guideines. The Exrsting Imsstmant Manager 1o the Trading Company also takes an sctiea role in managng and controling
the Trust's: market and courterparty risks, monitonng radng activities and mangin leveds daity and, a5 necessary, deposits additional
coliateral or reduces postions.

Market nsk
Markoat rek i5 the sk that the far vaiue or fifure cash flows of finencal nstruments will Ructuste dus to changes m market vanables
3Ueh 85 MHOEsT rates, Toreign exchand rates of undaying mesiment prces.

As the Tust simnated the mestment exposite b &5 underying hedge fund portfobo, the volatitty & not conmdered 8 maaningil
measime of msk as at 30 Apnl 2000 and therefore the annuaksed volatilty has not been calculated for the year ended 30 April 2020 and
30 Apel 2019 The Trust has no sndfcant exposunes W market isk other than the impect of IULe intsrest rabe expectatons on the IS

Treasury SHips,

Interest rate risk
Irerest rate resk (s e risk that the fair value or future cash fows. of a finencal insbrument wil Tiuctuate Decause of Changss n market
interest rates.

T Trurse, vl thi Trading and Non-Trading Companies, Nas apoduns Lo rlafest rabd ik on cash held &t the bark, Thal sxpodung may
nEt necessaniy bo signiicant dud L0 e ganrally short teim natung of these holdings, But & mete Sgrificant e¥pOosuns dsts in the value
of al financed insthaments hekd by the Tres theough e Non-Teading Compary that may be affected, eaher postively of regatively, by
changes in nlenest rales of US Treasury Sinps.
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Motes to the financial statemeants [continued)
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

o Financial nzk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The underying strateges of tha managed investment funds may exposs the Trust indeectly Lo Merest rate nek, a5 par of thar radedg
stratagy whech is mondored and managed by e Undemying irvestment Managers and Undemyng Tradng A dvsors o those funds.

The fealcrine] bt oAl thie Trust's doqposurs Do irlahial, rake rik h} s siliier off Coriractial MAturtms of fi-prcrg:

As al 30 2020

Mot exposed
Lass than 10 intanest
one maorith rate nak Total
Uss sy 53
Current assats:
Cash sl bank T4 - T4
Francial 855003 ot fair vk through proll of logs - 14,200,589 14,290, 589
Prapayments and ciher assets - 3,269 I.263
Tolal cument assals T4 14 253 858 14, 593052
Curront liabiLes;
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - {37 425) (37 425}
Total cumrent Rabéfses [axcluding net assets attnbutabde to
Unkholders) - {37 425) (37 425}
Interast rata gap T4 14,256 433 14 07
As ot 30 Apeil 2019
Mot axposed
Less than 1o intarest
one morth rate rsy Total
Us§ uss Us§
Currant assats:
Cash ot bank 827 - 59,621
Financial asseqs at fair vakes trougn proft or loss - T4 463 384 14 463 304
Prapayments and other assats - 3,264 3,260
Totel cument assets 5a g2 14, 466 653 14 526,474
Current liabites;
Accounts paysble and acorued & perses - 121,813 (21,8130
Totel cument BabdRsas (exciuding net assats attributable Lo
linkhoddars) = {21,813} 1,813)
Intarest rate gap G882 14.444.840 14,5048 881

Lasbiltios: not exposed (o mlenesl rabé nsk comprse accdunts payable &nd scciued oipenses. Théde amourts nomally roquers
corraciual satllement withen ond quames and, i all coses, withn one yeair,
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For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

5. Financial risk management (continued)

M |
Man | Q
Interest rate risk (continued)

Th followeng tabie debads the offect On not asaets Shald intenest ratiss hawe ncreased/decreased by 50 Dasa powts [Dpsh with ofl ather
vafiabies remaming constant, assumng that a 50 bps ncresse/decesss n the base nberast rate would resull n a comelatng 50 bps
incregsefdecaass in the valie of nel 855813, In maly, an ncreeseldecreass of 50 DS would not result 0 & diredt cormetating
nCreasafdecreass in the far value of net assets, as the movernent in the value of net a55es would depend on the individual 55 class
andlor ekl Serlemant owards sy Srsdidy in the renidl rabe

£ 30 Apel 2020
Mot axposed
Less than 10 Inkerest
one marh rate risk Total
uss L5%
el assels afer 50 bps Ncroass T4 14 256433 14 256,507
et sssas afe 50 Bps decrad e T4 14 256 433 14 256 507
QL0 Aol 2078
Mot axposed
Less than to interest
one maorth rate rsi Total
usg Uss uss
et azsals afer 50 BHE Moiaate B0 14 444 840 14 SOd GED
Mot assals afer 50 bps dectan 4o 39523 T4 444 B40 14 S0 362
CuTency rsk

Currency resk i T rrsk @1 the far vakee O futune cash fows of @ fnancial instrument wil Mucuate Decawse of changes n foregn
EeChAngd Fas.

Az at 30 Aprl 2020 and 20 Apd 2019, the Trust's a55ets and Rabdbes ane predommantly denominated in USS and the Trust doas not
have signifcant exposues b0 fonesgn cumency rsk, and accordngly, o sensdsty analyss is presented. As pant of the Trust's investment
stralengy, thie Trust may penodicaly hold ivestments denominated in fofeegn curencgs,

Price risk

Prica rigk s the nsk that the pece of a financial nstrument will Auctsate due 1o changes m martket condions influsncing, directly o
indiractty, the vahss of the matLment

The Trust is not exposed toother prce sk as all remening capial s hedd in cash

Credit nsk

Credt risk i e nEk that &n iSswsr o courmarparty will e unabis 1o meet o comemiment that & has entensd inbo with the Trua.

T Trursd' s faxmum exposure 1o orbdi mik [nol takng nfo actourt The value of any collitical of dthed Secunty hald) n i évint Bhal

the courterpanties foi o parform thes chbgations as @ 20 Apnl 2030 in relation 1o sach class of recognised finandial assus i the
camying amourt of those assets nihe statemant of Bnancial postion. Credt nsk is miagated thraugh regular mondorng of concentration
ek

T sigreficand, expotuns is 10 the Bark. As & pear end, scoofdng to Sandard end Poor's Rating Agency, the Bank 5 rated A-
(2019: A-)
Thee Exrstena Brvestmenl m;ermemw'g Company paforms dus digence on al counlenpames belons they becoms a sehacs

provider of counterparty to the Trust, and credit qualty checks are parl of this process. The credit guality of the Trust's Bank: s requisty
monitored and factored into alocation deciskons.
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Motes to the financial statements (continuead)
For the year ended 30 April 2020

5. Financial n=k management [continued)

Liguidity nisk

Liqued®y nsk 15 the ngk that the Trust will encourter dificulty m medting the obilgatins associsted with A3 equity that are settled By
detvenng cash of cash equialents

With the smination of (e Thust's mvesiment s@osunk 00 undiefang hedge fund ponfokos, 15 BUARY Bk IS Aow minmised, A1
remarnang capdal i eiher cash o readiy raa ksablis to cash

6. Net gain on financial assats at fair value through profit or loss

The folioweng Labdis how the el mvistment gains. of the Trust's Ivesments in nsncial assets &t far wakes thicugh prof, or 1085,
il B bl Qaing: O koS from e Trust"s ifmssatmant in thi Tradng Comparny and Non-Trading Compary,

For the year anded 30 April

2020 2018
L Us§

Firancisl assets at foir value through profit or loss:
Hetgain on US Treasury Stnps held by Non-Tradng Company 1,080,273 633,750
Mt boss on restmend in the Tradng Company which 15 comprised
of tha Tellowen Bims incurmad 81 the Tradng Comgarny lnel:
et gain on rvestmeants:

AHL Giobal rvesiments Senes 2- USD Shares = 9,375
AHL Evoltion Lnied - Class A - o2
Intenest ncome - 1,242
Ligal T (2750 e 658}
Diractoe™s lees 13,287) {16,000}
Valuation fees {12,500 (127280
Nt B35 on fofangn cueTency {53) (50}
Professions fees and generl expenses (20820 (49,794
Management and incentive fees = 15,258}
Transaction and brokerags costs - {1,753
sk transfer feas - 1,753}
1,008 834 593,811

7 Feas, commissions and other expanses

Management and incentive fees

AHL Programima

Manbgernent fees are charged of a rabe of one quater of 1% par manth (approimatety 796 par annuml, ane calculstad monthly and &e
payatie monthly in afrears.

hesnagernert fees an chirged on the mvestment sxposure siocaled 1o the AHL Programme jas defined by the cffenng documents) at
the sart of the waliation penod phe the smount of any ganaloases (calculated afer chargng &F eopoentes) moumod by the AHL
Frogramma duing tha peniod.
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I, Fees, commissions and other expenses (continued)

Management and incentve fees (continued)

AHL Programme

Incentivi fieas are calculabed ot the last calendar day of each calendar month or such other day a5 ditectors shall determine from tme o
e [the *Valuation Day®), (a5 dalned by M offenng documental 8t e fate squal o 20% of ary Ml New Spprecastion (ater deduchon of
sy Introducing Broker e, thi managanmers fee and ey slocated sdmiristration ek inchding thar part of th nke transfer and bguidiy
fers rilirabbe 10 the @55005 Comprited i e AHL AcCount But prcr 1o deduction of this noeniie fid] genedated by the AHL Programma,
The products run levered exposures, which mean Tor every mvested amount thers 15 8 wanabis risk level [Trading Nobonar). The
Tradng Notional kel is impactsd by both performancs of the AHL Prograrene and by westor rademnptions. The fee mathodalogy
used fior incantive fees i lvown as “Adpusted Frofits™, It s ‘based on a loss high water mark calculated with eepect to the Trading
Hegional. The gistance from thi loss high wister mark & sdjusted Tor any ne rduction in the Trading Notonal amount wiech |5 diven by
ithal perfommancs of Dy redamptions.

Marggemaent and incertive fees payabie n respect of the AHL Programme afe paid 10 Man Iesistments G in consideration fior the
MTkalng, adviscry and Mestment Management Senes.

Effactive 1 June 2073, fobowing the sbmnabion of s hedge fund mvestment exposune, the management and incentve fees have been
wahied,

Thase fass wene charged & the Tradng Compary livel.

Trea nurmecal amounts of the management and incentive fees as desonbed above are inclod e n the tables below:

For the year ended 30 Apdl 20139

Maondgomant Ingontive
fans fans Teral

usg uss
AHL Frogpamene 5258 - 5,258
5258 - 5,258

Fisk ransfer fees

Rk trarsfer feds are peyabla in &vesrs 1o Man westments AG on each monthly Deabng Day, at the rate of one twelih of 1%
(approommately 196 per annum] of the MAY of th Uns & the commencement of the month for whech the fee & due 85 aduited by
Fifreric o T value of ary changos in the numBsr of Lints dunng the month,

Effective 1 June 2018, foltwing the slmination of s hedize fund irmvestment srpasure, risk transfer fees have boen wiied,
This fesd is hatgad oL 1 Tradinsg Cornpary dil,

Adminisiraton fees

Adminestration fees ane pavabie in amears (o Mitsubshe UF) ivestor Senices & Bankng (Lusembourng) SA. (e =Adminstrator and the
“Regisra™} on each monthiy Dealing Day, & the rate of ona twelith of 0.11% (spprommately 0.11% per annum) of the NAY of the Unts
81 T o anciment of Lhe month Tor whech U Tod £ dise 43 adpribid by roferencd 10 thi vitkes of &y chanes in the numbsd of Unts
during thi month,

This fea is charged at 1 Trust kvl

Broker commission ees

Broker commission feds of USS M (2009 USE 1,753 were pdid 1o AHL Pamnecs LLP, the infroducing Broker, Instituteongd charges of
LSS Nl (2019 USSH Nil) whech cover einchangs and other third paty costs, ame paysbie 10 brokers,
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

1. Fees, commissions and other expenses {continued)

Broker commission fees (continued)

Broker commisson faes, excludng nstitubonal changes, ane calcufated ot & rate of one-bwelfth of 1% (aporoemately 1% per annum]) of
the Notonal AHL Account Value as at the begnning of the mmedeatsty precadng calendar month, adpsted by reference 10 the smount
of any gas of 105385 (calculsted after charging & expenses slocated o the AHL Account) ncumed durng such calendar maonth by the
AHL Progamamie.

Effoctiog 1 June 2018, foliowing the eimination of i hedpe fund insestmaent soposung, broker commikaion s hne Epan aabad,
This fee is eharged af the Tradng Comparty kvel,

Agent secunfy fees

Agent Secuity fees are payabss monthly in amears Lo Mitsubeshi UF D Morgan Staniey Secunties Co., Lid. fthe =Agent Compary™), at the
rate of OL5% ped annum of thie MAW per Und &t gach Valuation Day, multpbed By the curnent number of Lnds in issue at that, Valksaton

Dy, fior its Senvices as the Agent Company.
This Fe i chustgied at the Trust kel

Valuabon fees

W Viakanion Senced Limited (the = Data Compdation Agent™ o *BIVSLT) 15 responidi for mesntanng (e finencel Dooks and recornds,
calcdatng the NAY, handing untholder COMMUNICEIoNS, and SUpeniing the payimant of expenses by the Tl

Valiation fees are payable guartarty n afvaars 1o MVSL, caloulated monthly 8t the rabe of one bwelth of O.15% {approsamately 0.15% par
anrurn) of the MAY per Unit on esch Valuotron Day madtipbed by the number of Uinits outstanding on that doy, subdect to g minimum of
UES 25,000 per annum.

Efficctaog 1 Juns 2018, MVSL 5 ertithied 10 radote o T foed & USE 12,500 followng the Tt s comearion U @ pamanmnt cash fund
NVSL has sub-defegated e valusbon senice 1o Cioo Fund Sesvices [Bermuda) Lmied,

This fens 15 charged &t the Tradng Comparry kvel,

Regsrar and sacrearial fees

Registrar fees are charged by the Registrar and s payabls monthéy n smears at the rate of QL08% per annum of the NAY on each
Vishustion Dy

This fee s changed at s Trust level.

Truses fees

The Trustes (a5 trustes and custodian] 5 entitled to racens from the Trust an annual fee of 001% of the Trust's closng NAV, wih a
minamuen annoal fee of USE 17,0000 Trostes fees are payable m arvears (o GIBC Bank and Trust Company {Cayman) Umied on each
monthly Desing Day.

This fes ich hafesd al e Trusth kel

8. Related party transactions

haster MU-Procisct Holdngs Lig, & Bemuds incorported company, S 8 relied perty Bwoogh is 1009 halding of the Ordnary
Shares n the Tradng and Non-Trading Company. Master Mults-Product Hoidngs Lid is nsef owned Dy Codan Trust Comparry
(Bermuds) Limited {formery Codan Trust Comparry Limted), a5 trustes of the Master Multi-Product Purpose Thust,

The Exstng Imestment Manager Lo the Tradng Compary, New inestment Manager to the Tradng Company, Man Investments AG
(i =MAarketing Adviser |, AHL Partners LLP (the “Introcucing Broker] and the Data Compeation Agent ars subsxdianes of Man Group

pic and ab sutssdianes of Man Group pic are related parties. Man Group pic pays some general expenses on behalf of the Trust ang
Unagery P asr (s NGl dnEinr1es DO thir Trust,
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8 Related party tranzactions (continued)

CIBC Bark and Trust Company (Cayman] Lmded, s Cayman 1and neorporsted company o & related party by vilus of 0% role %
Trustee to the Trist. There is o utimats controfling panty,

Emch of the drectors’ of the Tradng and Nor-Tradig Companes o of may become mweohed in othed fnancel miesiment and
peofisaional scthnlios wWheth mdy CAUSE COnMkels of Meest with thi Mmanadgefent of the Tt Theds adailied meiude mandgement of
adminéstraticn of other companies nciuding thoss with Imvestment objectives smiter to that of the Trust or structures that may be
related to Man Group pic sponsored Pvestment funds), purchases and sabes of securties and other Fvestments, mesiment and
mansgamant counseling and Serving a5 dibectors, oficers, advisers andor agents of olher companis, ncluding comparies and legal
structiees i whech the Trust may Frest anclos which may imest into the Trust

Dwectors’ Toes ang pakl af the Trading Company and are abocaed 1o the Trading and Non-Tradng Companiss.
T folowng brandachons ook plece babtwadn the Trust, Tredng Comparry, Non-Trading Compary and thee nelated pares,

For the year ended 30 April 2020

Totalfees  Fees payase
usy

elated party Type of fee

CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited  Trustes fees 20,391 5,667
Directors Coroctons® foes® 13,31 oET
hAan Valuataon Seraced Limisd Valuation fiss® 12,500 o083

Fot the yesr ended 30 Aprl 2015

?ﬁd fazs Fees payaze

Related party Type of fea uss

CIBC Bark and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited  Trustes fees 19,841 5.EET
Dirertorns Durectons” faes ™ 16,000 5,333
Man IFvestinents AG Banacgerint fiss ard Feenthe s $2688 -
han Imvestments AG Fish transfer feas = 1,753 -
AHL Partnars LLP Brokar commission feas = 1,753 -
ean Valuabon Senaces Limasd Vahsstion fees® 12,78 Fle ]

* Charged atthe Trading Compary kel
T poron of Uinis cwned Dy entites affiated to Man Group phe 5 NS (20019 Ni%)

9. Share capital

They Tradis] and Mon-Trading Companes have an sRhonsed than capdal of USE 50000 each comprising 50,000 Ordmany Shares of
par valod LIS% 1 sich

Crrdinary Shares of the Trading and Non-Trading Company

Cdwiary Shises carry 10056 of the voting nohis, regardiess of wikether thivy ane called, The hoiders of Crdnary Shares ane entted 1o 2
dridend of up 1o LISE 5,000 per annum ot the Drectors' discrobon, hosdwern, nd dvidends: hunar been decianed in the cument of price
ot Ir thea event of 8 winding upr of desclution of the Trading and Nen-Tradmg Comparry, the holders of Ordinary Shares ane ertithed to
& amount squsl Lo the par valus theredk, f paid up, and the surplus 8s36ts of the Trading and Non-Tradng Company. Howee, the
holders of the Crdnary Shares hawe agreed rrevocably 10 waie ther entitiement 10 any smounts which excaed the par walue of theer
Qrdnary Shares and have suthonized the Trading and Non-Trading Compary 10 credt dey dush amounts (o the LUnt Accounts for the
benafit of tha rekeant Urdholdars, The Ordinany Shares heve Dodn isased bul not called, Mo amount & recognised urtd the Ordinary
Shares are caliad,

Units of the Trust

Trody Urits of tha Truat wde ofened for sabi 0o Suppiment 0o the officng documeants deled ﬂngmﬂuﬂ‘Wmm
offer closed on 27 March 2009, Subsequeent 10 thes evant, the mnimum subsonption amount was USE 30,000,

il
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9. Share capital (continued)

Units of the Trust {continued)
The Links have been clagsfied o% o financad labdty o3 they hawe o contractuml cbbgation 1o débver & the prevaling NAY per Ut
{theowsgh Capetal Protectron mechansm, a5 dafined Dy the offering documents) on 31 March 2023 (the “hMaturity Dare”).

The Uncholders ang enbliéd (o rededm thir Unils, upon wilten notice delvened no laler than the 15th day of the calendar moreh
precedng the Deabng Day ot a redempbion pce caloulated by refersnce to the NAY per Unt on the Valuston Day mmediately
praceding the Dasing Day onwhich thi rdemption i 10 be efected,

Thers afe fio redemption fees for Lnits redesmed on of after T Apal 2015, The redemptice e will in tuem Be pard By e Trust to the
Westkgting Advissr prmanly 10 compensate € for the costs of amanging for the manketng of the Unis.,

The Urds wil ¢ mature onthe Matury Date unkass b maturgy i exdended at thie option of thee Untholders by eatna ondmarny nesclution),
‘wilh the consent of the Manager and e Trustes, On tha Matuety Dete of the Unds, provided thede ane sufficient funds at such tens 1o
a1 respect of each Linlt outaiandeg, each Unk will Do fedeemad at the prévadng NAVY per LUnt

C:apital management
A5 a8 result of the abdity Lo redesm Units, the capdal of the Trust can vary depsnding on the demand for redemplions from e Trust. The

Trust i5 ok subpedt 1o extemally mposed capal requrements and has no restrictons on the redémption of Units athér than those set
cut i e Trest' s Offering documents.

Foliowng the slmination of 13 Fesiment sposEe 1o ks undedying edge fund portficho, thie Trusy's ohisctives for managng captal
nchuda:

= safequandng EVestars capRal, and

*  mantaining sufficient kquidity to mest the axpenses of the Trust, and to mest redempticn requests a3 they ansa.
Refer to Nobe 5, *Fnancial rsk management”, for the poicies and processes appbed by the Trust in managng &s captal,

M AV recondliation disciosure
Trgrg 5 & dfferonced botwssn tho NAY a3 pir the finencial stalemerts in accordanced with IFRS and the NAV for vahssion and
redemplion pur poses, calculated in accordance with the Tnast's ofenng dooum ents.

The Trust has aconued for catain futune bguidation costs in onder to imit the impact on Imestors wheans the trading capdal of the Trust
may decrease below 8 certain level. The accrusl costs for future penods is not. permissitde undes [FRS and has not been expensed for
thes puepcse of these financial statements

A reconciiation of the NAY as per the fnancial statements and the NAV for valuaton and redemplion puiposes & 85 follows:

A3l 30 Apr
2020 2ma
U53 U553
NAY por financial Setement:
13,600,000 f2049: 15,050,0000 Units with a NAY per Unit of USS 1.0258 (2009: 5% 0.5637) 14,256,507 14,504 5681
Less: Maturity costs recogrised nadvancs {32,000 100,000%
NAV per monthly valuation,
13,900,000, {2018: 15,060,000.) Urts with & M&Y per Uni of US$ 1.0233 (2018: USH 0.9571) 14,224 507 14 404 BET
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10, Taxation

Tha Cayrnen ldsnds cumently have Mo NCOMb, SONPINAtion o capdal Qans 18y, no \xes by way of wihholdng and nd ssiste duty,
inFwrkarcs Uax of gift Lax In addnon, the Trustes has spebed for and recetvid from the Governor n-Cabinet of the Cayman [tands
prduant 1o the Trust Liw (2005 Redsion] of the Cayman I5lnds, an undertasng that, for o pericd of 50 yeers from the date of the
undertaking no lew enacted n the Coyman Islands mposing amy tax o duty 10 be kvied on income o Capal assels of Qans of
Sppreciation of any 183 in the neturs of estate duty or inhantancs tax shal appdy Lo any property hedd in of any income ansng under the
Tkt o 00 tivd Trudhied o bemilicanas theced! n respoct of arry Such property of income, Ko Caplal o stamp dutieg ane bevied i the
Cayrnan lsipnds on the siue, Wanstr of redamplion of Units,

An anrual regrstration fae will be payabés by the Trustes to the Cayman lands Government, Each of the Tradng Company and the
Non-Tradng Comparny have been nooporated under the: laws of Uhe Cayman fslands as an exempted comparry and, as such, have
obtaned an undstakng fom the Governor-n-Calbinet of the Cayman [slands 1o the effect that for a perod of 20 years from the data

thereof no kew enacied n the Cayman islands mposing any 1ax bo be kevied on profifs of iNCome of gains o appreciaton wil apply o
tha Trackng Comparty of the Nen-Trading Company,

11, Subsequent events

Tha Dargictods and thar Raw bnvestmont hManager Lo the Trading Company adknowiedge the onegong cubresk of COVIDRTS which has
besn caumng economic disupbion smod the first quanes of 2020 m mest countries and 13 potenbialy adverse sconomic mpact on he
issuars of the nstruments in which the Trust evests. This is an additonal sk factor which could impact the operations. and vahuation of
the Trust's asaets afted the year end.

The New inmstment Manager (o the Trading Company & actively monfloring developments closely. Ghen the nature of the outhreak
and the onegoing devslopments, thane 15 o high degres of unceramty and & is not possble at this tme (o predict the sgent 2nd noture
of the oyerall future mpadt on the Trust

Subsequent o 30 Apnl 2020 through to the date of the audt report, thane were redemptions of U5 409578,

Thera Furvie Doen N sgreficent swents Smoe the yoar ered that impact T Tiust and requine @ discosung o e inancil SAL6mengs,

12.  Contingent liabilties and commitments

Thierds wiptip o CORENGRNE Babities or Commbmants a5 ot 30 Aprd 2000 (30 Aprl 2009; Ni)

24
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2020
13,912,063 1,465,775
94,138 9,918
13,817,925 1,455,857
13,500,000
1.0235 108

100/214



¢!

Q@

G

UFJ

101/214

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

S.A.
1150 287 289
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2020
187,117,965.90 197
5,051,655
2015 37,117,968.52
2016 37,117,968.52
2017 37,117,968.52
2017 11 187,117,965.90
2018 187,117,965.90
2019 187,117,965.90
2020 187,117,965.90

Q@
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32 4,924,285,192.16
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131

23 103

2020 31
105.36
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

2019 2018

31.1,31.3 3,122,139,702 328,948,639  3,714,129,527 391,320,687

3,15,31.1,31.3 3,708,799,645 390,759,131  3,533,550,709 372,294,903

2,480,378,645 261,332,694  2,311,150,709 243,502,839

1,228,421,000 129,426,437  1,222,400,000 128,792,064

31.1,31.3 670,745 70,670 372,880 39,287
4,31.1,31.3 2,783 293 2,834 299
5 3,551,365 374,172 3,783,033 398,580

365 38 257 27

6,15 37,533,722 3,954,553 36,979,553 3,896,166

7 6,872,698,327 724,107,496  7,288,818,793 767,949,948
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

2019 2018

15,31.1 1,156,999,949 121,901,515 1,794,570,343 189,075,931
1,156,999,949 121,901,515  1,565,940,343 164,987,475

0 0 228,630,000 24,088,457

8,15,31.1 5,228,117,398 550,834,449  5,073,055,610 534,497,139

5,228,117,398 550,834,449 5,071,655,610 534,349,635

0 0 1,400,000 147,504

9 1,232,118 129,816 2,206,816 232,510
10,15 29,941,563 3,154,643 15,704,349 1,654,610
21,488,541 2,264,033 18,148,556 1,912,132

11 20,080,003 2,115,629 16,536,604 1,742,297

12 1,408,538 148,404 1,611,952 169,835

13 187,117,966 19,714,749 187,117,966 19,714,749

14 197,956,757 20,856,724 158,191,749 16,667,083

14 988 104 3,259 343
49,843,047 5,251,463 39,820,145 4,195,450

16 6,872,698,327 724,107,496  7,288,818,793 767,949,948
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UFJ S.A.
2019 12 31
2019 2018
17,31.1 528,585 55,692 541,339 57,035
528,585 55,692 541,339 57,035

20 80,843,518,883 8,517,673,150 92,427,954,484 9,738,209,284
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UFJ S.A.
2019 12 31

2019 2018
102,750,017 10,825,742 81,824,073 8,620,984
9,159,885 965,085 5,448,991 574,106
45,637,424 4,808,359 31,789,988 3,349,393
(54,594,603)  (5,752,087)  (40,218,579)  (4,237,429)
(18,415,271)  (1,940,233)  (12,070,732)  (1,271,772)
(511,746) (53,918) (392,542) (41,358)
0 0 92 10
0 0 92 10
21 135,532,835 14,279,739 115,660,720 12,186,013
(68,018,470)  (7,166,426)  56,930,365)  (5,998,183)
3,671,743 386,855 4,336,416 456,885
22 1,439,792 151,696 4,322,262 455,394
(50,532,935)  (5,324,150)  (51,755,210)  (5,452,929)
24,25  (19,811,185)  (2,087,306)  (20,839,657)  (2,195,666)
(16,226,776)  (1,709,653)  (16,818,051)  (1,771,950)
(2,550,297) (268,699)  (2,632,035) (277,311)
(1,580,110) (166,480)  (1,596,915) (168,251)
26,30  (30,721,750)  (3.,236,844)  (30,915,553)  (3,257,263)
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(1,515,702) (159,694)  (1,767,494) (186,223)
23 (624,491) (65,796) (605,778) (63,825)
11,27.1  (16,495,317)  (1,737,947)  (13.169,369)  (1,387,525)

51,612,869 5,437,932 41,696,768 4,393,171
27.2  (1,769,822) (186,468) (1,876,623) (197,721)
49,843,047 5,251,463 39,820,145 4,195,450
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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1.3.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2018

2019
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1997 12 16
1.25
2019 12 31 2018

2.7.

2.5

2.8.

10

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.
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2019 2018
541,421,000 543,400,000
687,000,000 679,000,000

1,228,421,000 1,222,400,000

2,783 2018 2,834
3,096,039 336,220 (135,335) (55,927) 3,240,997 2,414,061 826,936
739,476 198,135 (134,010) (13,358) 790,243 509,876 280,367
2,356,563 138,085 (1,325) (42,569) 2,450,754 1,904,185 546,569

19,183,189 1,016,151 (14,891)  (B11,385) 19,873,064 17,148,635 2,724,429
17,237,750 1,016,151 (14,891)  (311,385) 17,927,625 15,203,196 2,724,429

1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0

22,279,228 1,352,371 (150,226)  (367,312) 23,114,061 19,562,696 3,551,365
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2019 2018

14,177,184 15,591,714

1,713,597 1,076,761

183,794 921,843

1,566,075 2,124,415

12,792,274 9,573,008

5,053,137 5,836,414

543,439 483,831

171,171 162,315

324,052 664,574

572,304 481,264

751 765

435,944 62,649

37,533,722 36,979,553

2019 12 31 5,141,994,595 2018
5,393,986,107
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,400,000
2019 2018
649,292 618,902
582,826 1,587,914

1,232,118 2,206,816
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11

2019 12 31

12

13
2019 12 31
49,080

2.2

2019 12 31

187,117,966
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2019 2018
8,943,522 6,908,708
4,769,237 3,224,725
1,612,014 3,347,939

58,141 308,226

14,380,755 1,717,819
114,097 122,543
63,797 74,389
29,941,563 15,704,349
1987 16
1983 23

2019 2018
1,408,538 1,611,952
1,408,538 1,611,952

5,002,575
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2019 5,404,737 152,787,012 3,259
2018 12 31 0 0 39,820,145
(57,409)
2019 9,981,000 (9,981,000)
2013 (3,101,000) 3,101,000
30,894,000 (30,894,000)
1,991,008 0 (1,991,008)
2019 12 31 7,395,745 190,561,012 988
10
10
2019 12 31 29,324,927 2018 22,444,927
2019 25 9,981,000 2019
2013 3,101,000
2019 12 31
2019
2014 -2015 3,019,136
2016 3,348,440
2017 4,276,351
2018 8,700,000
2019 9,981,000

2019 12 31 29,324,927
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2019 12 31

2019 12 31

575 2013

2019 12 31

16
2019 12 31
3,951,265,679

17
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2019 2018
3,313,250,489 3,314,382,591
25,391,063 24,033,836
3,338,641,552 3,338,416,427
2019 2018
1,121,324,163 1,787,952,744
790,938,178 1,001,503,360
5,272,305 5,654,686
1,917,534,646 2,795,110,790
24
2013 26
3,383,066,716
2019

3,311,881,103
14,190,435
56,995,178

3,383,066,716

5,161,213,531

2019

528,585

2018

541,339

2018
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18
2019 2018
5,226,846 6,499,120
19
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
20
21
2019 2018
22,712,248 21,506,351
99,635,836 80,663,753
11,022,939 11,772,959
700,533 921,843
1,461,279 795,814

135,532,835 115,660,720
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22
2019 2018
2013 2014 2015 2017 0 2,530,324
663,382 1,151,445
478,260 414,867
78,621 70,598
219,529 155,028
1,439,792 4,322,262
23
2019 2018
170,811 345,919
325,550 220,859
106,282 7,836
21,848 31,164
624,491 605,778
24
2019 2018
30 29
83 71
56 67
169 167
25
2019 2018
5,606,190 5,084,843
821,298 875,409
4,784,892 4,209,434

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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26
2019 2018
1,286,243 1,372,967
1,420,213 1,264,913
3,049,059 2,847,608
3,356,649 3,550,904
1,207,833 1,141,991
5,099,944 4,997,353
2,770,636 2,847,497
11,351,403 11,679,286
393,275 363,250
172,054 203,378
614,441 646,406
30,721,750 30,915,553
2019 29
27
27.1.
2019 2018
12,027,260 9,760,432
4,468,057 3,408,937
16,495,317 13,169,369
27.2.
2019 2018
1,710,089 1,819,754
59,733 56,869
1,769,822 1,876,623
28
2019 12 31
100
33 100-
8212

100
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100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
2019 12 31
) 2018 1,686,439

30

2014 49

2018

1,988,649
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2014 59
2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
180 (1)
1,924,193 (2,144,032
2019 2018
273,905 329,206
138,827 139,547
30,103 39,220

442,835 507,973
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2019 2019 12 31
31
31.1.
2019 12 31

3,122,139,702 0 0 0 3,122,139,702
3,021,799,645 687,000,000 0 0 3,708,799,645
670,745 0 0 0 670,745
0 0 0 2,783 2,783
6,144,610,092 687,000,000 0 2,783 6,831,612,875
1,156,999,949 0 0 0 1,156,999,949
5,228,117,398 0 0 0 5,228,117,398
6,385,117,347 0 0 0 6,385,117,347
528,585 0 0 0 528,585
528,585 0 0 0 528,585
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2018 12 31

3,714,129,527 0 0 3,714,129,527
2,854,550,709 679,000,000 0 3,533,550,709
372,880 0 0 372,880

0 0 2,834 2,834
6,569,053,116 679,000,000 2,834  7,248,055,950
1,794,570,343 0 0 1,794,570,343
5,073,055,610 0 0 5,073,055,610
6,867,625,953 0 0 6,867,625,953
541,339 0 0 541,339
541,339 0 0 541,339
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3,932,042,624 5,842,135 0 3,937,884,759 26,049,631

1,004,949,710 0 0 1,004,949,710 2,872,627

4,936,992,334 5,842,135 0 4,942,834,469 28,922,258

3,952,576,741 5,799,199 0 3,958,375,940 26,036,732

2,408,687,339 0 0 2,408,687,339 11,231,097

6,361,264,080 5,799,199 0 6,367,063,279 37,267,829
2019 12 31 2019 12 31
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3,271,219,543 3,321,504 0 3,274,541,047 77,666,609

1,394,522,057 0 1,394,522,057 2,067,411

4,665,741,600 3,321,504 0 4,669,063,104 79,734,020

3,303,598,230 3,270,027 0 3,306,868,257 76,992,277

854,553,985 0 0 854,553,985 2,708,455

4,158,152,215 3,270,027 0 4,161,422,242 79,700,732
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
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31.3.
2019 12 31
2019 2018
3,122,139,702 3,714,129,527
3,122,139,702 3,714,129,527
3,708,799,645 3,533,550,709
135,123,430 180,725,105
894,909,307 722,872,089
2,674,535,568 2,605,130,138
1,183,449 5,033,138
3,047,891 19,790,239
670,745 372,880
315,164 50,865
351,379 318,231
0 4
4,202 3,780
2,783 2,834
2,783 2,834
6,831,612,875 7,248,055,950
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31.4.
2019 12 31
2019 2019
3,136,956,781 17,460,853
752,436,735 8,314,206
48,491,243 274,572
1,004,949,710 2,872,627
4,942,834 ,469 28,922,258
2018 12 31
2018 2018
3,160,915,130 75,043,013
113,600,617 2,623,478
25,301 118
1,394,522,057 2,067,411
4,669,063,105 79,734,020
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
Decamber 31, 2019

{in LS0)
ASSETS

Notes 2018 2018
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks 3.1, 31.3 3122.133.702 3. T14.120.52T
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,15 311, 21.3. 3.708.799.645 3.533.550.709
a) repayable on demand 2480378 645 2.311.150.708
b) other loans and advances 1.228.421 000 1,222 400,000
Loans and advances to customers ) I T . X 670.745 ar2.880
Shares and other varable-yield securities 4,311,313 2.783 283
Fixed Assets 5 3.551.365 3.783.033
Other assets 355 257
Prepayments and accrued income 6 15 37533722 36,979,552
TOTAL ASSETS T 6.872.6598.327 7.288.818.733

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

=11 -
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
BALANCE SHEET
Diecember 31, 2019
{in LSO
- continued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2019 208
Amounts owed to credit institutions 18,311, 1,156.999,543 1.794,.570.343
a) repayable on demand 1.158 595549 1.565.940.343
b) with agreed maturity dates 0 Z28.630.000
Amounts owed 1o customers 8, 15,311, 5228.117.398 5.073.055.610
a) repayable on demand 5228 117.388 5.071.655.610
b) with agreed maturity dates o 1.400.000
Other liabilities E:] 1.232.118 2206816
Accruals and deferred income 10,15 29.941.583 15.704.349
Provisions 21.488.541 18.148.556
a) provisions for tacation 11 20080003 16.536.604
b) other provisions 12 1.408.538 1.611.952
Subscribed capital 13 1871175966 187.117.966
Reserves 14 197.956.757 158.191.748
Result brought ferward 14 588 3.259
Profit for the financial year 49,843,047 38,820,145
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18 7.28B.818.793

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
-12-
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Decamber 31, 2019

{in LSO
Motes 2018 2M8
Contingent liabilities 17, 31.1. 528.585 541.338
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral secunty 520.585 541,338
Fiduclary operations 20 B80.843.518.883 92.427.954.484

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
= 13-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2019
{in LSO
Motes 2019 218
Interest receivable and similar income 102.750.47 81.824.073
of which:
=  Megative interast received on deposits 9,159 885 5 448 981
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 45627424 31.780.988
Interest payable and similar charges (54.554.603) (40.218.579)
af which:
= Megative interest paid on lans and advances (18.415.271) (12.070.732)
= Interest Loss from foreign cumrency swap (511.748) (392 .542)
Income from securities o 92
Income from shares and other variable yield securities o a2
Commission receivable 21 135,532 835 115.660.720
Commission payable (68.018.470) (56.930.355)
Net profit on fimancial operations 3.6T1.743 4.336416
Cther operating income 22 1.438.792 4,322 262
General administrative expenses (50.532.935) (51.755.210)
a) staff costs 24,25 {18.811.185) (20.839.65T)
of which:
wages and salanes {18.226.778) {16.818.051)
social security costs (2.550.297) (2:632.035)
af which;
- social security costs relating to pensions (1.5800110) (1.596.915)
b) other administrative expenses 26, 30 (30.721.750) (30.915.553)
Value adjustments in respect of tangible {1.515.702) (1.767.454)
and intangible assets
Other operating charges 23 (624.491) (605.778)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11, 27.1. (16.495.317) (13.169,369)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 51.5612.869 41.695.768
Other taxes not shown under the preceding items vz (1.765.822) (1.876.623)
Prefit for the financial year 49.843.047 39,820,145

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
=15
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

1.1,

Eorporate matters

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LLUXEMBOURSG) S A, (the "Bank®) was incorporated in
Luxembourg on April 11, 1874 as a sociéld anonyme.

On April 1, 1986, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd., merged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd., and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S A, changed its name to Bank of
Tokya-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S A

On Ootober 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubashi Tokyo Financial Group, Ine. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited to
form T he Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S A changed its
name to Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (Luxembourg) S 4.

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corparation by 70% and Bank of Tokye-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd, by 30%, which are under the same holding
campany Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG). Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
{Luxembourg) S A, changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A, (MUGC),

On April 28, 2008, MITSUEBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5 A, has issued 49,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37 117.958.52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 92 25% of the cap®al, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 28,53%.

On August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A. has established an external branch located at
Ormande House, 1213 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. Mitsubishi UFJ) Glabal Custedy S A, Dublin
Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1993, under the number 807548

A7

132/214



1.2

1.3

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Glabal Custody 5 A. has changed its name to MITSUBISHI LIFJ INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A (MIBL)

On May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Mitsubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.

The members of the Board of Directors are Senigr Executves of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corparation Group
and Independent Directors. The business policy and valuation principles, unless prescribed by the legal requirements

existing in Luxembourg, are determined and monitored by the Beard of Directors in accordance with those applied in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

HMature of business

The obgect of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the account of third parties ether within or

outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembaourg, of any banking or financial operations, as well as all other operations,

whether industrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object described above.

More specifically, the Bank concentrates its activibies on investment management senvices.

A significant velume of the Bank's transactions ks concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UFJ

Financial Group,

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

MOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accordance with the laws and regulabons
in foree in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
sector in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

In ehserving these, the follewing significant accounting pelicies are applied.

Assets and llabilties are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concerned become cleared funds, that s,
on their date of effective transfer.

Foreign nei

The Bank maintains a muli-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the currency or currencies of

the transaction, on the day an which the contract is concluded

Assets and liabilties are converted into LISD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date, Bath
realsed and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resulting from items specifically covered by a forward foreign exchange confract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.

Revenues and expenses in foreign curmencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the yvear-end, all unsettled forward transactions are translated into USD at the forward rate prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturities,

Results on unsettied forward transactions linked to spot transactions and on swap transactions are accrued at the
balance shest date. |n case of unfealised results on position covered by foreign exchange Swap, these are neutralized
at year end.

Financial in n rivativ

The Bank’s commitments deriving from the derivatives financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, financial futures and options are recorded on the transaction date ameng the off balance sheet items.

134/214



24

25

26

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of indwidual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
recorded for the year 2019 (2018 USD ml).

Mo provision i5 set up in these cases wherne a financial instrument clearly covers an asset or a liability and economas

unity is established or where a financial instrument s hedged by a reversa transaction so that no cpen position exists.

It is the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irrecoverable debts, as deemed
approphiate by the Board of Directars,

Value adjustrnents, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate,

The value adjustments for possible losses on loans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
rélate.

wion b 1
In accordance with the Luxembouwrg i legislation, the Bank can establish a lump-surm provision fof fisk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervision of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are Bkely to crystallise but which have not yet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

accounts.

Pursuant to the Instructions issued by the Directewr des Contributions on December 18, 1957, this provision should be
made before taxation and shoukd not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures,

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 31, 2019 (2018: USD 0)
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

Iransferable securdies
Transherable securdies are recorded initially at thesr purchase prnce. The average cost method 15 used for initial

recognition, Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2 5. or arising from a diminution of value, are deducted

fram the account balance

Tangible and ntangible asests

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fed assets with
lemited useful economic lwes is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systematically over their useful economic lives. as follows

+  Hardware equipment 4 years,

* Software: 4 years and 3 years,

s Other intangible assets: § years,

& (Other tangible assets: 10 years,

¢ Goodwill 5 years.

hares in affili n kir

At the Balance Sheet date, shares in affiliated undertakings held as financial fixed assets are stated at the lower of cost

of market value

Taxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis m the accounts af the year @ which they relate. Provisian for taxation
comesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the

financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

This asset itermn inchudes expenditure incurred during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year

e
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 21, 2015
- continued -

Accryals and deferred income

This liability tem includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

Brovisigns

Pravigions are imended to cover losses or debts the nature of which i clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are either likely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncertain as to thesr amount or as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main streams of revenue are comprisad of interests and commissons income,. The Bank earns fee and
commission income from a wade range of services it provides to its customerns.

Revenue is generally recognized whean the related services are performed or recognized over the period that the
services ane provided.

MOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit institutions other than those repayable on demand may be analysed according to their
refr@ining maturity as follows:

20119 2018

UsD UsD

Mot mare than three months 241.421.000 S43.400.000
Mare than three months but less than one year BA7.000.000 &76.000.000
1.2:28.421.000 1,222 400.000

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable securities shown under the item "Shares and other variable yield securities® consist entirely of unlisted

securities for USD 2,763 (2018 2.834)
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE & - FREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:

2019 2018

UsD usD

Accrued interest incame 14177184 15.581.714
Accrued Interest income on swaps 1.713.597 1,078,761
Commission from the Management Company 183.794 521.643
Commission on fiduciary operations 1.586.075 2124415
Commission on global custody 12792274 9573008
Commission on investment funds 5.053.137 5.836.414
Other accrued mecome 543 430 453811
Other Commissions 171171 162,315
Other prepayments 324.052 684 574
Frepaid general expenses 572 304 481,264
Prepaid incarme taxes 5 765
VAT recoverable 435 Gd4 §2.648
37 533732 36,079 553

HOTE 7 - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2019, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign currencies,

translated into USD, s USD 5,141 584,585 (2018 USD 5,393 966.107).

NOTEB - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2019, there is no debts cther than those repayable on demand owed to customers.
{as at December 31, 2018 debts other than repayable on demand amounted to LISD 1,400,000

.24
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 9 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other liabilities may be analysed as follows:

2019 2018
uso usD
Preferential crediors 548.282 618902
Sundry creditors S82.526 1.587.914
1232118 2206816
NOTE 10 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:
219 2018
UusD uUsD
Acerued commission 8943 522 6.908. 708
Accrued general expenses 4 TG0 23T 3224 T35
Accrued mberest expenses 1.612.014 3347938
Deferred income related to custody fees 58.141 308 226
MNeutralzation of foreign exchange results on postion covered
by foreign exchange swap (note 2.2.) 14 380.755 1.717.818
Other accreed expenses 114,067 122,543
Other suspensa receipts (*) 63.797 74,388
20,041,563 15,704,349

{*) Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the 311272019 to the related beneficiary.

L5
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 11 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION

Under Luxembourg fiscal reguiations, the Bank's fiscal Balance Sheet and #s results of operations are required
to be expressed in Euro. The eamings of the Bank as determined for fiscal purposes can differ substantially
from earnings reported for accounting purposes as a result of unrealised profits or lesses on the translation of
the Bank's equity into Euro equivalents for fiscal purposes.

In accordance with the Law of July 16, 1987 (as modified), which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translaton
gains on exchange on the investment of equity in banks, unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
USD against the Euro can, under normal arcumstances, be neutralised to the extent of the amount that
exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carned forward

In accordance with the Law of July 23, 1883, however, which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation gains
on exchange on the investment of equity in banks, future unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
US dollar against the Eurg can, under normal circumstances, only be neutrakised to the extent of the amount

that exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carned forward.

As at December 31, 2019, there are no deferred tax.

HOTE 12 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions are made of provision for staff remuneration.

2019 2018

UsD usD

Prowision for staff remuneration 1.408 538 1.611.8952
1.408 538 1,811,952

NOTE 13 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187,117 986 for
5,002,575 shares of Class A and 49,080 shares of Class B
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 14 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought
resere reserves forsard
uso usoD usD
Balance at January 1, 2019 5404 73T 152.787.012 3259
Profit fof the yvear ended December 31, 2018 0 ] 29820145
Approphiaton of profit
- Dividends paid to shareholders {57.408)
- Transfer to reserves for Met Worth Tax 2019 9.881.000 (2.981.000)
= Transfer from Reserve for Net Warth Tax
213 (3.101.000) 3.101.000
- Allecation 1o Free reserve 30.804.000 (30.594.000)
- Allecaton to Legal reserve 1.881.008 ] {1.991_008)
Balance at Decembbar 31, 2019 T7.385. 745 190.561.012 88

Under Luxembourg law, the Bank must appropriate to a legal reserve an amount equivalent to at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital This appropriation is made in the
followang year. Destribution of the legal reserve is restricted. This requirement s satisfied as the Bank has
reached 10% of the issued subscribed capital

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, limited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previous
year before the imputation of any tax credits, In order to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent year an amount equal to five times the net worth tax cred? to a special
resanve, which has to be maintained for a period of five years.

As of December 31, 2019, the special reserve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's other reserve for a total
amount of USD 28324 927 (2018: USD 22 444 527).

As resclved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 25, 2019, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 9.581.000 to special reserve for Net Worth Tax 2019 and reversed the available special resarve for Net
Worth Taw constituted in 2013 which amounted o USD 3.101.000.

The accurulated balance of special reserve for Net Worth Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2019,

L7
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -
209
Reserve for Net
Worth Tax
Years usD
2014 - 2015 3.M9.136
2016 3348440
217 4,276,351
2018 8.700.000
209 5.651.000
Balance at December 31, 2019 28324 927

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at December 31, 2019, the follvwing balances with related parties are cutstanding:

ASSETS
2019 2018
UsD UsD
Loans and advances to credit institutions. 3313.250. 488 3314 382551
Prepayments and accrued income 25.391.063 24,033,838
3338 641,552 3338 416,427
LIABILITIES
2019 2018
usD UsD
Amaunts owed to credit institutions 1121324163 1.787.952 744
Amounts owed to custormers TH0. 938178 1.001 503360
Accruals and deferred income 5.272.305 5654 686
1.917.524 646 2.785110.790

.28
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

The Bank has not entered into any significant transactions with related parties as defined in International
Accounting Standards 24 *Related Party Disclosures”™ which were not made on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions as of December 31, 2019 and for the year then ended.

At the request of the Bank, the CS5F has granted a total exemption for the exposures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure imits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EV) Mo 5T5/2013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As at December 31, 2019, the amount towards the group falling under this exemption amounts to
USD 3.383.086.716 and can be analysed as follows:

2019
usD

Loans and advances to credit institutions 331881103
Prepayrments and aserued income 14,180 435
Foreign exchange transactions (Market Risk method) 55995178

3383086716

NOTE 16 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2019, the aggregate amounts of abiltes denominated in foreign currencies translated into

USD is USD 5161.213.531 (20158: USD 3.931.265.679).

NOTE AT - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent kabiities may be analysed as follows:

208 2018

UspD usp

Counter-guarantees ssued 528585 541.338
—— ——

As at the year-end, there were no related party balances,

.96,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into certaln commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nof in the
Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation of the
Bank Details of such commitments are as follows:

205 a8
usD UsD
Commitments in respect of fixed rental payments contracted on
buildings 5, 226846 G.485.120

As at the year-end, there are no related party balkances

NOTE 1% - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET

RATES

The follcwing types of forward transactions are outstanding as at Decermnber 31, 2019 and 2018:

Dperations linked to currency exchange rates

- Forward exchange transactions (swaps. outrights).

Operatons linked to the foreign currency exchange rates are mada 1o a large extent fof the purposes of

covering the existing positions.

NOTE 20 - INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency services provided by the Bank include:

- Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fiduciary represantatons,

- Agency functions;

= Partfalio management and advice,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2015
- continued -
NOTE 21 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2019 2018

UsD UsD

Fees on Investment Funds Z2T12.248 21,508 351
Fees on Global custody from Institutional custamers 99 635836 80 663,753
Fees on Fiduciary transactions 11022 830 1. 772950
Fees on Services to Management Company 700.533 921.842
Other fees and commissions 1.481.278 TH5.814
135.532.835 115,660,720

e —— I ——

Commissions recevable consist of the following;

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Investment Funds for custody senvices,
central admanistration, depositary and other services. The fees are calculated on the bass of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commissions charged to institutional
custorners for global custady services including securities trade management, settlerment, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voting. The fees are calkculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions.

Fees on Fiduclary transactiens consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
transactions, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the

assets held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covering functional expenditures and fees for support

sarvices in accordance with the Service Level Agreement

Other fees and commissions include vanous fees such as ksting agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services
fees and fund order desk services fees,

.31,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A

NHOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -
NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2018 2018
usD uso
Adjustment of Income taxes 2013-2014-2015-2017 o 2530324
Adjustment for commission previous years B63.352 1.151.445
Inceme fram the adjustment of genaral expenses
regarding prewious years 478 260 414 BET
Sub-Rental Fee received from the Management
Company (Service level agreement) Ta.e! 70,568
Other operating income 219.529 155.028
1.438.792 4,322 262
I — I —
NOTE 23 - OTHER QPERATING CHARGES
2019 2018
usoD usoD
Charges from the adjustrient of general
axpenses regarding previous years 170,811 345819
Commission on Hevious years 325.550 220,859
Interest on previous years 106,282 7836
Others operating losses 21.848 31.164
524.491 805.778

.32,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 24 - STAFF NUMBERS

The average number ar persons employed dunng the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

2013 me

Humber Number

Senwor managemsent =0 29

Middle management 83 ™
Employees i) __ &7
169 167

HOTE 25 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial body of the

Bank by reason of thew responsibilites as follaws:

2019 2018

UsD UsD

Senwor management 5.606.190 5084 843
Of which variable remuneration 821.298 875409

Of which fix remuneration 4,784,892 4,200,434

During the financial year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General

Management were made.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Board of Directors and General Management
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 26 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 208

UsD UsD

Data charges 1.285.243 1.372 867
Maintenance 142013 1264913
Membership fees 3.048.038 2.847 608
Professional fees 3,356,649 3.550.904
Rent and related expenses 1207 833 1,141 991
Service contracts 5.050.044 4,967 353
Service fee 2.770.636 2.847 497
System cost 11.351.402 11.679.286
Telecommunicabon expanses 383275 363.250
Travelling, moving, business trips 172,054 203,378
Other expenses 614,441 G45. 406
30.721.750 20.915.553

The increase of the costs for Memberships is due to the increase of the fees paid to Single Resolution Funds
during the year 2019 (Mote 29)

NOTE 2T - TAX

271, Taxon profiton ordinary activities

2019 018

UsD usD

Corporate Income Tax 12,027 280 8.780 432
Municipal Business Tax 4.468.057 3408937
16.4585.317 13.168.368

149/214



b b

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

2015 208

uUsD usp

VAT 1.710.088 1.519.754
Other taxes 50,733 55,665
1768522 1876623

NOTE 28 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank is a jpintly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated under the laws of Japan and whose registered office is in Tokyo

The annual accounts of the Bank are included in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corparabon, with Registered Financial Institubien number 33 at Kanto Local Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-3212, Japan,

The consolidated accounts of the holding company Mitsubishi UF.J Financial Group (MUFG) may be cbtained
from the head office at 7-1, Marunouchi 22Chome, Chiyeda-Ku, Tokye 100, Japan.

HOTE 25 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resolution, recrganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
irvestrient firms and on depost guarantes and investor compensation schemes (the “Law”), transposing into
Luxembourgish law the directive 201 4/S%EL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
instistions and investment firms and the directive 2014/45EU related to deposit guarantee and investor

compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

The deposit guarantes scheme ("Fonds de garantie des dépdls Luxembourg™ (FGOL)) and the investor
compensalion system ("Systéme d'indemnisation des investisseurs Luxembouwrg” {SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositar up to an amount of EUR 100,000 and investments up to an ameunt of EUR 20.000.
The Law also provides that deposits resulting from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific socal or other
purpose are covered for an amount above ELR 100,000 for a period of 12 months,

Cradit instiutions conlfibute on an annual basis to the Luxembourg banking resolution fund ("Fands de
resolution Luxembourg” (FRL}), respectively to the FGDL.

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States. This amount will
be collected dunng the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGOL s et at 0.8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 179(1) of the
Law, of the relevant credit institubions and 1% to be reached by the end of 2015 throwgh annual contributions.
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018. When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit instfutions are 1o continue to contribute for & additional years in order to constitute an
addibonal safety buffer of 0.8% of covered deposits as defined in article 180(1) of the Law.

For the year end December 31, 2019, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 1.924.193

{USD 2144 032). (2018 : EUR 1.586.439 / USD 1.988 645).
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 30 - AUDIT FEES

During the financial year, the Bank has been charged by the Audit firm and its entire network with the following

fees (excluding VAT):

2019 2018

UsD uUsD

Audit fees 273905 329,206
Other assurance services 138 827 139,547
Tax Advisory fees 30103 39.220
442,835 SO7 973

The other assurance services provided during the financial year by the entire nebwork of the Audit firm included
the following Service:

- ISAE 3402/ S0C 1 Type || Report for the pencd from Januwary 1, 2019 to December 31, 2018,

The Tax Advisory services provided dunng the financial year by the entire netwark of the Audit firm included the
following services:

- Preparation of tax returns;
- Preparation of VAT returns

.37,

152/214



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

GO 825

CHCEES

LFELLLGRE'D

PECLLLBIE'S
GFE'B56'e5L')

GLETIYIERD

EBLE

EBLE
SvL0L9
SPEGELBOLE
ZMBELZELE

asn

lejoL

£RLT

asn

sieak g <

85825

o |ol
o

u] CECRES

SaajURIEn S 210

SEAUBIEND

sopuslufiuod S8 POSORSID FWGY JOYS BOURBT-H0

1] LFELLLGEED

o S LLLRIT'S
0 BRE'666'95L '}

oo |c|

000000 LBS ZE00LI FYLS

0 0

o SYL0LE
000000 Leg SPOEEL DT
4] 0L BELEZELE

coooo |n|

asn asn asn
aigakgs ek | 5

Jeak | < SUYIUOW g < SUIUOW ¢ 5

SaQIIqEr] [BlaueUl [E30]

SIBUCISND O PG SIUNOULY
SUOINIASUI JIPSID O PAME SIUNOLIY

SS2|3 JUIWNNSUY|
SALLTISYIT TFIDNYNIE

S1385Y |BI2UELIS [€10]

SBUNIIS Pl JQEUEA JAYI0 PUE SSIBYS
SIGUDIEND O] SSOUBADE PUE SUBDT
SUCHMMSU| JPaID O SSEIUEAPE PUB SUBDT
JE U YIA SBIUEIER

522 JUWNIgSY|

SLISSY TVIDNYNID

Qsn u unowe Buiues 1y

“Buwwoypoy 8y 51 unjew (enprsal pue ssep &g (onogod Buipes ou sey yueg ey sjuawngsu Esueuy Buipeg-uou Sewnd jo sisfjeue ay} ‘GLOZ LE eqwWaa0 1E Sy

- PANUEOD -
BL0E " LT Iequassg
SINNOIDY IHL OL S310M
WS (DUNOAWIHNT) SHHNYE § SIDIAYIS MO LSIAMI T 4N IHSIBNS LIW

UGS [eroTeny GO Py U0 JTeg

Vg

SIHNFOTIFA LNIWNHLEN] TIFIDINYNIL - e ILON

153/214



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

GEE LS

BEL LG

665291989

OL9S50eL0's
EFTDLSPELL

056'§50'8rE L

FER'E

143K

0a% ELe
G0L0S5EESE
LOSGTLPLLE

asn

L 118

FER'T

asn

SIEDA G <

o |a|

=} |a|

cooo |a|

asn
aeskgs
Jeak | <

GEE' LS

GEC LIPS

£66'529.98'9

000'000'ELS

OLe'ss0'eL0's
EPEDLSPELL

9LLES0E95'S

o
0
000'000'ELE
+]

asn
ok L5
SYUOW § <

0

0gg'gie
E0L0S5 FPeeE
LSBTV PLLE

asn

SQUOW § S

SHMUBRIEN S |BI0)

SEUEIEND

sopualuuod S8 PESOPRSID SWEY OYS BOUTBT-H0

SN 19E1T [eIDuUBLIS (BI0L

HIBUDISND O PO SIUNCY

SUDINIGSU JPSID O] pawO SJUnoUY
SSE|D U WNASY|

SAILMISYIT TIVISNYNIS

Sjassy [BlaueUld B0 )

SIUNIDS PA FGRUEA DUI0 PUR SRS
SISLDISNG O} SIIUEAPE PUE SUBDT
SUCHMISY) UPSID O] SAOUBADE PUR SUBDT
108 B4 Yiwa Sa0UE|eg

SS2|5 JUSWAASU|

S1355V IVIDNYNI

asn ul unowe Guifues 3y

‘Buwnoyay syy 1 Aungew [enprsas pue ssep Ag (ogopod Buipen ou sey jueg sy sjuswngsu jesueuy Buper-uou Lewd jo sisfleue ay) ‘gLOg 'LE sequEsag e sy

WS (DUNOAWIHNT) SHHNYE § SIDIAYIS MO LSIAMI T 4N IHSIBNS LIW

= POnUQu0s -
BL0E " LT Iequassg
SINNOIDY IHL OL S310M

154/214



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

"BL0T 'LE 19qWS0S(] Il SIED SNjEA B PUE §LOT 'LE /STWSIa(] 210480 SjED SPEN B Y sjuswngsw [epueuy Buipen-uou aajeasap 510 SPNOU! SURGWE BS51 |

EZOLOTLIE BLTEIDLIED o o 561 BELG 0B0'PIT 1IE D (178
LEDLET L BEEL80°00FP T 0 0 0 BEC L20°00P T sdeng
ZEL BE0BT OFE'SLERSEE 0 i} BEL'BEL'S el 8IS 256 SpIEMIO
suogoesuRy efusyoxe uleioy
SS2|D JUIWNISU|
S3ILNIEYI IYIDNYHIS
BGZ ZZ6 6E BV PEE ZFE b o o GEVZPR G VEE Z66 9E6 b [3T1
[EOELRE OLL 6w FOO L 0 i} i} 0LL GkE 00 L sdemg
LEO'Br00Z BSL PRI LE6T 0 0 SELEFE'S PZOTEOTEEC SPIBMIGS
suopaesuey abueyxe ulaso
SSE|D JUILWNSU|
SLISSY IVIONYNIA
asn asn asn asn asn asn asn u)wnowe sjgeled jeuspou 3y
weslss Jeok L=
an|ea Jied 1121 seshc < Jeak | < SYUoW g < BljuoW § 5

Buraoiiog eyl 31 Aunjew [enprea) pue 55813 Ag (oojprod Buipey ou Sey yueg ayy) sjuaInSY! [EDUEU) BUIPEL-UDW AREALSD D 1O JO S1ABUR ay) GLOT LS POWa2a0 1B Sy

SJUSIN SN |EI0UELL CUIPEN-U0U anjerlag

- PANUWOD -
BL0E " LT Iequassg
SINNOIDY IHL OL S310M
WS (DUNCAWIKNT) SHHNYE § SIDIAYIS MO LSIAMI TSN IHSIBNS LIW

T

155/214



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

'BLOZ ‘L€ JEGUWE08(] JEYE SJEP SN(EA E PUE §LOT

ZELDOLEL TP ZZE LY
SoEe0l g CREESS PSR
LITEHEOL L5800 00EE
DEOPELGL FOLEIDEIT Y
bR L90T LS0ETH PEE b
B09'ERLL L PG RLEE
asn asn

anjes Jjed [Li1N

o
0
0

=1

asn

UBRA G <

o
0
0

asn
weskgs
ek | <

-

‘LE 18quaoa] 210yaq S)Ep SPEN B LW SJUSWNLS [Eiaueuy Bupen-uou aajenIep 010 SpNjoUl SJUNCWE BS81 |

LZ0'0LZE SIEZSLBSLY jegel

0 CEB'Cos PSR sdemg

LE0OLEE DECEBSE0EE SPIBAIOS

suoppesues ebusypxe ubpsoy

SSE|2 JUIWRGSY|

SALINSYIT IVIONYNIZ

05 IZE'E 009 LPL'G99'r [L:at+

0 LSOETS PEE L sdews

OS5 LIEE EFSELE LLEE SPUBMIOY

susgaesues sbusisxe ubesod

SSE|D JUSWAISU|

SLISSY IVIDONYNIY

asn asn asn ulunowe ajgefed |pusiou iy

ok L 5

SUINOW € < SYUoW g S

‘Buwopoy sy 51 Amew enprss) pue ssegp Ag (ogopod Buipen ou sey jueg sy stuswngsul [epueuy upen-uou aaealep O 10 40 SISdEUE By "gL0T 'LE sequada e sy

= POnUQu0s -
BL0E " LT Iequassg
SINNOIDY IHL OL S310M

WS (DUNCAWIKNT) SHHNYE § SIDIAYIS MO LSIAMI TSN IHSIBNS LIW

156/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

Information an credit risk on primary non-trading financial ingtrurments

As at December 31, 2019, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial
instrurments:

2019 2018
Carrying amount Carrying amaount
in UsSD in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS

By instrument class and gecgraphic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 3422138702 3714125 527
EU mambar countrios 3.122.139.702 3.714.128.527
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3. TOB.T39.645 3.533.550.T09
EU member countries 135.123.430 180.725.105
North & Central America 894.908.307 722872089
Asig 2.674.535.568 2.605.130.138
Eurapa, non-EU member countrias 1.183.449 5033138
Australia and New Zealand 2047891 19.780.239
Loans and advances to customers 670.745 72880
EU member countries 315.164 50.865
North & Central America 351,379 118.231
Asia a 4
Europa, nan-EU member countries 4,202 3780
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.783 2834
EU member countries 2.783 2.834
Total 6.831.612.875 T.248.055.950

. 42-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

34 Information on dervative non:-trading financial instruments

As at December 31, 20185, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instrurnants

2019 2019
Motionalipayable Risk equivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber countries J.1368.956.7687 17.460.8563
Amevica T52.436.735 8.314.208
Azig 48.491.243 274.572
Swaps
EU member countries 1.004.848.710 2872627
Total 4,942 834469 28,922.258

- 43-

158/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instrurments:

2018 2018
Motional/payable Risk equivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FIMAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geocgraphic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mambar countrias 3.160.915.130 Fo.043.013
Amevica 113.600.617 2,623.478
Azig 26.301 118
Swaps
EU mambar countries 1.394.522.057 2.067.411
Total 4.669.063.105 75.734.020

.44 -
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1
UFJ S.A.
2020 30
010 4,337,018,208 456,948,238
020
030 2,855,171,572 300,820,877
040 1,481,846,636 156,127,362
050 27,207,999 2,866,635
060 27,207,999 2,866,635
070
080
090
096 0 0
097
098
099
100 0 0
120
130
141 2,784 293
142 2,784 293
143
144
181 3,021,982,786 318,396,106
182
183 3,021,982,786 318,396,106
240
250
260
270 5,168,539 544,557
280 5,168,539 544,557
290
300 3,009, 484 317,079
310
320 3,009,484 317,079
330 751 79
340 751 79
350
360 25,770,032 2,715,131
370
380 7,420,160,584 781,788,119
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UFJ

2020

30

S.A.

010

45,589,584

4,803,319

020

45,589,584

4,803,319

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110

6,884,536,105

725,354,724

120

6,880,136,553

724,891,187

130

140

4,399,552

463,537

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

14,432,457

1,520,604

250

14,159,986

1,491,896

260

272,471

28,708

270

280

16,811,084

1,771,216

290

300

6,961,369,230

733,449,862
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UFJ

2020

30

S.A.

010

187,117,966

19,714,749

020

187,117,966

19,714,749

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190

1,810

191

200

210

247,675,774

26,095,120

220

230

247,675,774

26,095,120

240

250

23,995,804

2,528,198
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260
270 0 0
280
290
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Independent Auditor®s Report

The Trustee
Man AHL Diversified Principal Protected Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Man AHL Diversified Principal Protected Fund
(the “ Trust” ) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2020, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Trust as at 30 April 2020 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Other information included in the Trust®s 2020 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. Management is responsible for the
other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and the Trustee for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
ligquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Trust"s financial reporting process.

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

This report is made solely to the Trustee, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Trustee those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors® report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trustee as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's internal control.
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- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors®™ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors®
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.

1 October 2020
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To the Board of Directors of

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
287-289, Route d*Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Annual accounts

Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking
(Luxembourg) S.A. (the "Bank'™), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2019,
and the profit and loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2019, and of the
results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 on the audit profession (Law of July 23, 2016) and with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur
Financier (CSSF). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014,the Law of July
23, 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the
"Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Annual accounts”
section of our report. We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual account, and have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

210/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenues recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be one of
most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.14 - Revenue
Recognition and Note 21 on Commission
Receivable of the annual accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
135,532,835 as of December 31, 2019.
Commission receivable mainly derives from
fund administration, fiduciary and global
custody operations.

Different underlying bases and rates are
applicable depending on the underlying
investments, agreed terms and services
provided.

The process of commission receivable
recognition for the Bank includes
significant manual interventions.

Accordingly, the calculation of commission
receivable are considered to be a key
audit matter due to the significance of
the amounts involved, combined with the
complexity and operational risk associated
with determining the calculation of the

commission receivable.

We obtained an understanding of the
commission receivable recognition process,
and we reviewed key controls in the
process. Due to deficiencies identified
related to the manual processing of
commission receivable, we did not use a
control reliance approach and our
assurance was obtained based on
substantive audit procedures, consisting
of a combination of tests of details and
substantive analytical procedures.

We developed expectations for the
aggregate amounts per type of commission
income and we compared the expectations to
the amounts recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:
we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions. This also included the
reconciliation of the underlying basis
to external evidence;
we agreed the receipt of the commissions
to subsequent payments.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual
accounts and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of and Those Charged with Governance for the Annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
annual accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to
the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Bank"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank®s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Annual accounts

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual accounts.

212/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the Réviseur d*Entreprises Agréé to the
related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé by the Board of Directors on March
24, 2019 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 45 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N°
537/2014 were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the
audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Martin Flaunet, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

March 10, 2020
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